
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Economy Scrutiny Committee 
 
 

Date: Thursday, 11 November 2021 

Time: 2.00 pm 

Venue: Council Chamber, Level 2, Town Hall Extension 

 
Everyone is welcome to attend this committee meeting. 
 
There will be a private meeting for Members only at 1:30pm on Thursday 11 
November in the Council Antechamber, Level 2, Town Hall Extension. 

 

Access to the Public Gallery 
 

Access to the Public Gallery is on Level 3 of the Town Hall Extension, using the lift or 
stairs in the lobby of the Mount Street entrance to the Extension. There is no public 
access from any other entrance. 
 

Filming and broadcast of the meeting 
 

Meetings of the Economy Scrutiny Committee are ‘webcast’. These meetings are 
filmed and broadcast live on the Internet. If you attend this meeting you should be 
aware that you might be filmed and included in that transmission. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Membership of the Economy Scrutiny Committee 

Councillors - H Priest (Chair), Baker-Smith, Bayunu, Doswell, Farrell, Johns, Moore, 
Noor, Raikes, Stanton and Shilton Godwin 

Public Document Pack



Economy Scrutiny Committee 

 

 

Agenda 
 
1.   Urgent Business 

To consider any items which the Chair has agreed to have 
submitted as urgent. 
 

 

2.   Appeals 
To consider any appeals from the public against refusal to allow 
inspection of background documents and/or the inclusion of items 
in the confidential part of the agenda. 
 

 

3.   Interests 
To allow Members an opportunity to [a] declare any personal, 
prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interests they might have in 
any items which appear on this agenda; and [b] record any items 
from which they are precluded from voting as a result of Council 
Tax/Council rent arrears; [c] the existence and nature of party 
whipping arrangements in respect of any item to be considered at 
this meeting. Members with a personal interest should declare 
that at the start of the item under consideration.  If Members also 
have a prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interest they must 
withdraw from the meeting during the consideration of the item. 
 

 

4.   Minutes 
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held 
on 14 October 2021. 
 

5 - 12 

5.   Initial Budget proposals 2022/23 
Report to follow 
 

 

6.   Contribution of Higher Education institutes to the City's 
Economy 
Report of the Director of Inclusive Economy and Strategic Lead 
Policy & Partnerships attached. 
 
This report provides an overview of some of the key economic 
data that is available to demonstrate the impact Manchester’s 
Universities have on the city’s economy. It also includes a number 
of case studies to highlight specific examples of economic benefit. 
 

13 - 30 

7.   Graduate retention and student numbers in the City 
Report of the Director of Inclusive Economy attached 
 
This report provides an overview of the student body studying at 
the higher education institutions (HEIs) in Manchester with a 
specific focus on the two largest institutions: The University of 
Manchester (UoM) and Manchester Metropolitan University 
(MMU).  It also provides an overview of the numbers of graduates 
remaining in the city post-graduation and includes the emerging 
picture of the impact of COVID-19 on the student body, graduate 

31 - 50 



Economy Scrutiny Committee 

 

 

retention and attraction and the local response to support the 
gradate labour market. 
 

8.   Economy COVID19 Sit Rep Report 
Report of the Director of City Centre Growth and Infrastructure 
and Director of Inclusive Economy 
 
This report provides Committee Members with a further update 
summary of the current situation in the city in relation to COVID19 
and an update on the work progressing in Manchester in relation 
to areas within the remit of this Committee. Further detail on 
specific issues will be available as required. 
 

51 - 74 

9.   Overview Report 
Report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit attached 
 
This report provides the Committee with details of key decisions 
that fall within the Committee’s remit and an update on actions 
resulting from the Committee’s recommendations. The report also 
includes the Committee’s work programme, which the Committee 
is asked to amend as appropriate and agree. 
 

75 - 88 



Economy Scrutiny Committee 

 

 

Information about the Committee  

Scrutiny Committees represent the interests of local people about important issues 
that affect them. They look at how the decisions, policies and services of the Council 
and other key public agencies impact on the city and its residents. Scrutiny 
Committees do not take decisions but can make recommendations to decision-
makers about how they are delivering the Manchester Strategy, an agreed vision for 
a better Manchester that is shared by public agencies across the city. 
 
The Economy Scrutiny Committee has responsibility for looking at how the city’s 
economy is growing and how Manchester people are benefiting from the growth.  . 
 
The Council wants to consult people as fully as possible before making decisions that 
affect them. Members of the public do not have a right to speak at meetings but may 
do so if invited by the Chair. If you have a special interest in an item on the agenda 
and want to speak, tell the Committee Officer, who will pass on your request to the 
Chair. Groups of people will usually be asked to nominate a spokesperson. The 
Council wants its meetings to be as open as possible but occasionally there will be 
some confidential business. Brief reasons for confidentiality will be shown on the 
agenda sheet.   
 
The Council welcomes the filming, recording, public broadcast and use of social 
media to report on the Committee’s meetings by members of the public. 
 
Agenda, reports and minutes of all Council Committees can be found on the 
Council’s website www.manchester.gov.uk.  
 
Smoking is not allowed in Council buildings.  
 
Joanne Roney OBE 
Chief Executive 
Level 3, Town Hall Extension, 
Albert Square, 
Manchester, M60 2LA 
 
 
 

Further Information 

For help, advice and information about this meeting please contact the Committee 
Officer:  
 
 Michael Williamson 
 Tel: 0161 234 3071 
 Email: m.williamson@manchester.gov.uk 
 
This agenda was issued on Wednesday, 3 November 2021 by the Governance and 
Scrutiny Support Unit, Manchester City Council, Level 3, Town Hall Extension , 
Manchester M60 2LA



Economy Scrutiny Committee  
 
Minutes of the meeting held on 14 October 2021  
 
Present:  
Councillor H Priest (Chair) – in the Chair 
Councillors Doswell, Farrell, Johns, Moore, Raikes, Stanton and Shilton Godwin 
 
Also present: 
 
Councillor Midgley, Executive Member for Health and Care 
Councillor White, Executive Member for Housing and Employment 
 
Apologies:  
Councillors Baker-Smith and Noor 
 
ESC/21/47 Minutes  
 
A Member commented that a report that described how the recommendations of the 
Poverty Truth Commission were being implemented should be included as an item on 
the Committee’s work programme (see ESC/21/42 Manchester’s support for families 
living in poverty). 
 
Decision 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 9 September 2021 were approved as a correct 
record, subject to the above amendment. 
 
ESC/21/48 Build Back Fairer – COVID-19 Marmot Review: Housing, 

Unemployment and Transport 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Inclusive Economy and Strategic 
Lead Policy and Partnerships that provides an overview of the Marmot Build Back Fairer 
report focusing on housing, unemployment and transport in Manchester, in line with the 
remit of the Committee. The report discussed the impact of COVID-19 on housing, 
unemployment and transport in the city, relative to health inequalities, and outlined 
Manchester’s response to recommendations in the Build Back Fairer report.   
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 

 

 Providing and introduction and background; 

 Describing the impact of COVID-19 in a Manchester context; 

 Noting that The Marmot report detailed the disproportionately negative impact that 
the COVID-19 pandemic has had in Greater Manchester; 

 Describing the factors that had affected the inequalities in infection and mortality 
from COVID-19 in Greater Manchester; 

Page 5

Item 4



 Noting that Manchester’s residents had 
been disproportionately negatively impacted by the pandemic.  

 Describing a range of factors such as Housing, Work and Unemployment, 
Transport and Active Travel in a Manchester context and describing the associated 
The Build Back Fairer report summaries; and 

 Providing information relating to the Marmot Report Framework and 
Recommendations and detailing the Manchester’s response to these 
Recommendations. 

 
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  
 

 The need to retrofit domestic properties, particularly those in the Private Rented 
Sector; 

 The need to protect tenants from eviction if they did complain about disrepair in 
their privately rented accommodation; 

 The need to promote the Good Employment Charter, noting the impact that good 
quality employment could have on a person’s outcomes; 

 The call for improved and affordable public transport to connect residents with 
employment and training opportunities; 

 What metrics and timescales would be used to measure progress against the 
Marmot Recommendations; 

 Noting that the Marmot Review and Recommendations was a tool that could be 
used to demonstrate to the Government the need for appropriate levels of funding 
to address the identified inequalities;  

 Welcoming the recognition that being in good work was usually protective of health 
while poor quality work, stressful jobs, and unemployment, particularly long-term 
unemployment, contribute significantly to poor health and low wellbeing and 
increase the risk of mortality; 

 Consideration needed to be given to all needs of different residents, including 
disabled residents when considering the re-design of how major areas of the city 
centre would function and to reallocate space to walking and public realm; 

 More information was sought on the Anchor pilot scheme; 

 Noting that the NHS was a major employer in the city and a key partner of the 
Council they should use their procurement policies and scale of purchasing to 
deliver Social Value; and 

 The need for accessible and affordable child care places; especially for those 
families who were earning just above the threshold for free child care. 

 
The Executive Member for Housing and Employment stated that COVID-19 had 
highlighted and exacerbated many of the health inequalities that existed in the city. He 
described that prior to this the city had experienced a sustained period of austerity and 
cuts to public service funding. He advised that the wider determinants of health, such as 
quality housing and employment were understood. He called upon the Government for 
adequate funding to be able to deliver more affordable and social housing. He 
advocated the need to take action to address poor practice in the Private Rented Sector 
using Houses in Multiple Occupation and Selective Licensing schemes. He further made 

Page 6

Item 4



reference to the Section 21 Team who would support those residents at risk of eviction 
from a private landlord. He concluded by reiterating that the wider determinants of health 
needed to be addressed such as improved public transport networks and investment in 
skills and training for residents and he would continue to lobby Government for a fair 
funding settlement.  
 
The Director of Inclusive Economy advised the Committee that a Task Group would be 
established to be Chaired by the Director of Public Health to oversee the delivery of the 
Marmot recommendations. She described that the reporting metrics would be agreed via 
this group and could be shared with Members when available. 
 
The Director of Inclusive Economy stated that the recently launched Anchors Pilot had a 
twin focus of supporting Manchester to become a Real Living Wage City and increasing 
commitment to employing local people, particularly from our more disadvantaged 
communities. This would further support the implementation of the Good Employment 
Charter and any future evolving definition of a GM quality of work guarantee.  In 
response to a comment regarding those areas of the city that did not have a major 
employer she described that they would be working for the city as a whole and not just 
the geographical location then were situated in, adding that in North Manchester there 
existed a North Manchester Business Network with good links between local smaller 
business and community initiatives.  
 
The Director of Inclusive Economy acknowledged the comments regarding the NHS and 
the role they played in the city as a major employer. She stated that officers had spoken 
with their procurement teams however stated it was important to recognise that the NHS 
was subject to national procurement policies and guidance so had little local discretion 
on such matters. She advised that the local hospitals had initiated schemes and 
programmes to deliver training and employment opportunities for local residents.  
 
The City Centre Growth Manager advised that work continued at a Greater Manchester 
(GM) level to improve public transport, especially the bus network and made reference 
to the Bus Service Improvement Plan, adding that the ability to franchise the bus 
network would present an opportunity to address the issue of fares and deliver a 
planned integrated service. The Chair commented that there was need to report any 
analysis of changes to modes of transport and travel, noting the impact of COVID-19 
and emissions. 
 
The Director of Inclusive Economy acknowledged the comment regarding the need for 
appropriate, affordable child care and stated that this provision is reported to the 
Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee. The Chair stated that she would 
discuss this further with the Chair of that Committee.  
 
Decision 
 
The Committee:- 
 

Page 7

Item 4



(1) Recommends that the Executive Member for Housing and Employment lobby the 
Government for adequate funding to enable the retrofitting of properties in the 
Private Rented Sector. 

 
(2) Notes that the Chair will discuss with the Chair of the Children and Young People 

Scrutiny Committee the issue of appropriate provision of affordable child care 
across the city. 

 
ESC/21/49 Work and Health 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Inclusive Economy that provided 
an update on the activity of the most recent Working Well programmes (Work & Health, 
Early Help and JETS) and the impact of the programme overall in Manchester. 
 
Working Well is a well-established Greater Manchester Combined Authority 
commissioned programme which is based on a key worker model bringing together 
support to tackle barriers that affect people’s ability to enter the labour market and 
sustain jobs.  It has evolved since 2014 to reflect a focus on different target groups, with 
the latest being the Work and Health programme. In 2020 it was expanded with the 
JETS programme as part of the National Plan for Jobs in response to COVID19.   
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 

 

 Providing and introduction and background; 

 Describing the content of the report in a Health and policy context; 

 Describing the Manchester Population Health Plan 2018-2027 that set out a priority 
of ‘Strengthening the positive impact of work on health’; 

 An overview of each Working Well programme and its impact in Manchester; 

 Economic recovery and the Government’s Plans for Jobs; and 

 Conclusions and next steps. 
 
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  
 

 Noting the positive progress made in relation the Real Living Wage; 

 An explanation was sought as to the reason the ‘no work requirements group’ 
continued to rise from c10,000 to c17,000; 

 Comparative figures were sought, where available across the range of metrics 
reported as this would assist with the scrutiny process; 

 Clarification was sought as to the type of jobs and sectors people were accessing 
through the initiatives; 

 An analysis of the success of the Kickstart programme should be included on the 
Committee’s work programme; 

 Was the reported support for 8,000+ Manchester residents over the next 3 years 
as part of the Restart progamme an ambition or part of the contract with Ingeus; 

 The need to recognise the importance of the quality of jobs people were accessing 
and this importance this had on people and their outcomes;  

Page 8

Item 4



 The need for programmes to be flexible to respond to the changing needs and 
demands of the labour market; 

 Supporting the adoption of the Real Living Wage; 

 The need to consider what was best for the individual and not focus on targets and 
welcoming the reported holistic approach taken by advisors; 

 Calling for more regional control on the design and delivery of skills programmes;  

 Requesting the independent evaluation of the Population Health Prevention 
Programme be shared with Members when this was available; 

 Noting that people were often reluctant to engage with the benefit service due to 
the perceptions that any reassessment of their benefits would result in them being 
financially worse off or having to commence the claiming of benefits again; 

 An update on the UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) was sought, noting the 
importance of the for both Manchester and the wider city region; 

 Welcoming the Working Well programme that had helped drive Disability Support 
Webinars with Small, Medium enterprises (SMEs) by offering to upskill businesses 
to deal with a variety of health conditions; 

 
The Executive Member for Health and Care stated that health inequalities were 
inextricably linked to the wider determinants of health. She stated that the city region 
needed appropriate funding to support the actions identified to address these 
inequalities and to counter the significant impact that austerity has had on the residents 
of the city. She advocated that addressing health inequalities should be the central 
consideration to all decision making. 
 
The Work and Skills Lead commented that the reported rise from c10,000 to c17,000 in 
the ‘no work requirements group’ could be attributed to the recording of data by the 
DWP following conversations with residents, however he advised that he would seek 
clarification on this point. He advised that Job Centre Plus staff were encouraged to 
engage in holistic conversation to ensure potential job opportunities were appropriate 
and sustainable, taking into account a range of considerations that included travel 
requirements. 
 
The Work and Skills Lead advised that the figures reported for the Restart programme 
were part of the contract arrangements. 
 
The Work and Skills Lead advised that comparative data where available could be 
shared with the Committee, and he further advised that the type of work people were 
accessing through these programmes were predominantly in the Care and Customer 
Service sectors. He further commented that the roles of the key workers was to review 
all options that were available, including understanding the changing labour market to 
ensure the most appropriate and tailored support was provided and identify and address 
any barriers to accessing employment opportunities. A member noted the need to 
acknowledge people’s genuine concerns regarding accessing jobs in certain sectors, in 
particular the care sector if they themselves had a health issue due to the perceived 
increased risks of contracting COVID-19. 
 

Page 9

Item 4



The Director of Inclusive Economy commented that a report on the impact of Kickstart, a 
programme delivered locally by Jobcentre Plus, offers 6 month jobs for young people 
aged 16-24 who are currently claiming Universal Credit and who are at risk of long term 
unemployment could be provided to the Committee at an appropriate time, adding that 
initial analysis indicated that the outcomes were not as good as had been anticipated, 
despite the impact of the pandemic and this strengthened the case for more local control 
over the design and delivery of schemes.  
 
The Director of Inclusive Economy stated that further information in the business that 
had delivered the Disability Support Webinars would be provided to the Members 
following the meeting. She stated this importance of this approach was recognised and 
commented that a report issued by the British Chamber of Commerce had recently 
published a report that emphasised the need to consider the health and wellbeing of 
employees. 
 
The Director of Inclusive Economy acknowledged the comments made regarding the 
barriers presented by perceptions of the benefits system by stating that Universal Credit 
is more flexible than previous systems and it was designed to be an ‘in work’ benefit, 
however acknowledged the comment from the Chair on this subject.  
 
The Chair commented that she would discuss with the Chair of the Health Scrutiny 
Committee how the reporting of the independent evaluation of the Population Health 
Prevention Programme could be appropriately reported to scrutiny.  
 
Decision 
 
The Committee:-  
 
(1) Recommends that the Director of Inclusive Economy circulate for information the 

details of organisations who had delivered the Disability Support Webinars; 
 
(2) Request that a report on the impact and outcomes of the Kickstart programme be 

added to the Committee’s work programme for consideration at an appropriate 
time; 

 
(3) Note that the Chair will discuss with the Chair of the Health Scrutiny Committee the 

options for reporting the findings of the independent evaluation of the Population 
Health Prevention Programme  

 
ESC/21/50 Opportunities and issues for older workers in the Labour Market 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Inclusive Economy and 
Consultant in Public Health (Ageing Well Lead) that provided data on the employment 
and skills status of workers (aged 50 to 64) in Manchester, how they had been impacted 
by Covid and the actions being taken to connect them to opportunities in the City as part 
of the Economic Recovery Strategy.  
 

Page 10

Item 4



Key points and themes in the report included: 
 

 Providing and introduction and context, noting that older workers who are out of 
work are twice as likely to be long-term unemployed as younger workers who are 
out of work; 

 Describing the situation for Older Workers in Manchester; 

 Data on Employment and Skills for those residents aged over 50 years old; 

 Data on the levels of Universal Credit claimants for those residents aged over 50 
years old; 

 Describing the Impact of COVID-19 on employment;  

 Challenges and issues, including the digital divide and the digital inclusion work 
underway to address this; 

 Information on Age Friendly Manchester (AFM) and Manchester’s Ageing Strategy - 
Manchester: A Great Place to Grow Older 2017 – 2021; 

 Programmes and work being delivered across Manchester Age Friendly 
Employment; and 

 Conclusions. 
 
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  
 

 The need to give due consideration when describing digital skills when discussing 
the over 50’s as the range of knowledge and experience could differ greatly; 

 Noting that it was socio economic barriers that presented the largest challenge to 
many older residents;  

 The need to recognise that over 50’s had a wealth of other experiences that they 
could bring to the work place; 

 Noting the need for employers to recognise and accommodate the different life 
pressures experienced by older workers; 

 People should be supported and encouraged to prepare a CV rather than having to 
reply solely on submitting job applications on-line; 

 Welcoming the reported co-creation activities, adding that this approach of utilising 
and learning from lived experience should be applied to all services and 
programmes and would there be any evaluation of this undertaken; 

 Had consideration been given as to the impact of Long Covid 
 
The Director of Inclusive Economy acknowledged the comment made regarding the 
need to recognise the different needs and challenges for people over the age of 50, and 
the different existing skills sets within this cohort. She commented that in Manchester 
the digital inclusion work had targeted over 65s.  
 
In response to the comment made regarding CV’s the Director of Inclusive Economy 
commented that Manchester City Council had changed its policy and would now accept 
a CV and covering letter, however acknowledged the wider point on this issue. She 
further stated that a report on the outcomes of the co-creation activities would be 
submitted to the Committee at an appropriate time for consideration. In response to the 

Page 11

Item 4



issue regarding Long Covid and its impact on the over 50s she advised that no specific 
data was currently available however this would continue to be monitored. 
 
The Programme Lead – Age Friendly Manchester welcomed the comment made 
regarding changing caring responsibilities and stressed the importance of employers 
recognising these. He stated that Manchester Council had responded by introducing a 
flexible working policy and there was a need to engage with the private sector to 
demonstrate the benefits to both employers and employees by introducing such 
schemes.  
 
Decision 
 
The Committee recommend that an evaluation report on the co-creation activities 
relating to the Over 50’s and Employment Project be submitted for consideration at an 
appropriate time. 
 
ESC/21/51 Overview Report  
 
The report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit which contained key decisions 
within the Committee’s remit and responses to previous recommendations was 
submitted for comment. Members were also invited to agree the Committee’s future 
work programme.  
 
In response to a question from the Member the Chair commented that the COVID-19 
Situation Report would be included as a regular item on future agendas and that the 
Economy Dashboard would also be included at the appropriate time. 
  
Decision 
 
The Committee note the report and agree the work programme, noting the comments 
above. 
 

Page 12

Item 4



Manchester City Council 
Report for Information 

 
Report to: Economy Scrutiny Committee – 11 November 2021 
 
Subject: Contribution of Higher Education Institutes to Manchester’s 

economy 
 
Report of: Director of Inclusive Economy and Strategic Lead Policy & 

Partnerships 
 

 
Summary 
 
This report provides an overview of the economic contribution of Manchester’s two 
main universities, The University of Manchester and Manchester Metropolitan 
University. The report utilises research by Public First which was undertaken in 2020 
using data from 2018/19 which quantified the direct value created by the universities, 
their wider supply chain and procurement spending with local businesses, and the 
additional spending of their staff, students and visitors. It also draws on Research 
England’s new Knowledge Exchange Framework (KEF) and Higher Education 
Statistics Agency (HESA) data. Both universities signed the Greater Manchester 
Civic University Agreement on 24 September 2021 during the Greater Manchester 
Combined Authority meeting and are committed to delivering positive outcomes for 
Manchester and the city region.  
 
Recommendations 
 
It is recommended that the Committee consider and comment on the content of the 
report including the detailed case studies. 
 

 
Wards Affected: All  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Environmental Impact Assessment - the impact of the issues addressed in this report 
on achieving the zero-carbon target for the city 

Both universities are members of the Manchester Climate Change Partnership and are 
signed up to the city’s zero carbon 2038 ambitions, which were calculated through The 
University of Manchester’s Tyndall Centre for Climate Change. They have climate 
change action plans in place and are also part of the Oxford Road Corridor Zero 
Carbon Subgroup. They also undertake extensive research to support the city to 
decarbonise. 

Page 13

Item 6



Our Manchester Strategy outcomes Summary of how this report aligns to the 
OMS 

A thriving and sustainable city: 
supporting a diverse and distinctive 
economy that creates jobs and 
opportunities 

The universities are anchor institutions who 
employ significant numbers of workers in a 
broad range of academic and non-academic 
roles. They spend large amounts of money 
through their supply chains, attract research 
and development investment, and also play a 
major role in promoting the city on a global 
stage.  

A highly skilled city: world class and 
home-grown talent sustaining the 
city’s economic success 

The city’s universities create a pipeline of 

highly skilled graduates and many of these 

remain in the local labour market. 

A progressive and equitable city: 
making a positive contribution by 
unlocking the potential of our 
communities 

Both universities are active anchor institutions 

who seek to drive social value through their 

procurement and commissioning activity. They 

are Living Wage Foundation accredited.  

A liveable and zero carbon city: a 
destination of choice to live, visit, work 

The universities support the delivery of the 
city’s zero carbon objectives and play a key 
role in place making, attracting investors and 
visitors. The universities have joined up with 
the University of Salford to establish the GM 
Energy Innovation Agency. MMU deliver 
carbon literacy training and the University of 
Manchester hosts the Tyndall Centre for 
Climate Change Research whose research 
was used to directly inform our city’s 2038 zero 
carbon target.  

A connected city: world class 
infrastructure and connectivity to drive 
growth 

Both universities manage a large proportion of 
the city’s public realm with a concentration in 
the Oxford Road Corridor area. They also have 
important digital assets. 

 
Contact Officers: 
 
Name: Angela Harrington  
Position: Director of Inclusive Economy 

Telephone: 0161 234 3171 / 1501      
Email: angela.harrington@manchester.gov.uk  
 
Name: David Houliston  
Position: Strategic Lead Policy and Partnerships 
Telephone: 07534 288 788 
E-mail: david.houliston@manchester.gov.uk 
 
 
 

Page 14

Item 6



Background documents (available for public inspection): 
 
The following documents disclose important facts on which the report is based and 
have been relied upon in preparing the report.   
 
Copies of the background documents are available up to 4 years after the date of the 
meeting.  If you would like a copy please contact one of the contact officers above. 
  

Page 15

Item 6



1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 Manchester is internationally renowned for the strength of its Higher Education 

Institutions which date back nearly 200 years and have always maintained a 
strong civic bond with the Council. The Universities’ positive influence extends 
well beyond formal education and this report attempts to provide a summary of 
some of the ways in which Manchester benefits economically from its major 
universities.  

 
1.2 Calculating a precise figure for the economic impact of higher education 

institutions such as The University of Manchester and Manchester 
Metropolitan University (referred to from this point on as ‘Manchester’s 
universities’) is of course a difficult task with many different methodologies, 
models and proxies available. Their influence on the future lives and careers 
of those studying, their workforce and the impact of their world-leading 
research is impossible to fully quantify and there are a wide range of non-
economic benefits too in terms of social cohesion, health, culture, democratic 
life and personal liberties.  

 
1.3 This report does, however, provide a summary of some of the key economic 

data that is available to demonstrate the impact Manchester’s universities 
have on the city’s economy. It also includes a number of case studies to 
highlight specific examples of economic benefit.  

 
1.4 A separate report to this committee examine student numbers and graduate 

retention in Manchester and should be read alongside this report. A future 
report on Purpose Built Student Accommodation will be scheduled. 

 

CASE STUDY: Oxford Road Corridor 
 
The University of Manchester and Manchester Metropolitan University are 
key members of the Oxford Road Corridor Partnership which is 
Manchester’s innovation district covering one square mile south of the city 
centre. For more than 15 years public and private sector innovation anchors 
in the area have worked in partnership with regional and national 
government to build on the Oxford Road Corridor’s research and 
development strengths, with a shared vision to create an innovation 
ecosystem that can match and exceed leading innovation districts in Europe 
and the United States. The Oxford Road Corridor Partnership also includes 
the Council, Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust, Bruntwood, 
Manchester Science Partnerships, Royal Northern College of Music and 
HOME. Collectively, the Oxford Road Corridor has transformed the area 
with over £1.1 billion invested in health, education, culture and commercial 
facilities. The most recent statistics for the Oxford Road Corridor show that 
the district supports: 
 

 79,000 jobs - an increase of 24,000 since 2010  

 8,800 businesses - a 61% increase 

 50% of Manchester’s life science businesses 

 £3.6 billion GVA 

Page 16

Item 6



 50% of Greater Manchester’s innovation assets 

 15,000 clinical research participants 

 74,000 students 

 Over 16,000 international students 

 42% of students studying STEM related disciplines 

 27,000 graduates and post-grads supplied into the labour 
market each year. 

 
2.0 Sustainability and the Greater Manchester Civic University Agreement 
 
2.1 Both of Manchester’s universities recently signed up to the Greater 

Manchester (GM) Civic University Agreement, along with the Royal Northern 
College of Music, University of Salford and University of Bolton. The 
agreement committed them to working jointly to address six key priorities: 
Education and Skills, Reducing Inequalities, Jobs and Growth, The Digital 
Economy, Net Zero, and Creative and Cultural Economy. A new Civic 
University Board will oversee specific targets, deliverables and reporting of 
progress.  

 

2.2 These six priorities were informed by listening to local residents. The GM 
universities commissioned Public First to poll a representative sample of 
residents across all ten GM authorities to find out how they viewed the city 
region’s universities. The poll was undertaken in February 2021 and in total 
over 1,000 residents were polled with at least 100 in each local authority. 
Some high-level results were that: 

 

 83% thought GM universities are important economically to the region. 

 Economic recovery was identified by residents as the most important long-
term social and economic priority followed by reducing unemployment and 
reducing inequality. 

 79% (highest in GM) of residents in Manchester surveyed said they were 
fairly proud or very proud of the role that local universities played – a figure 
that was higher than in the other nine GM local authorities. 

 
2.3 Manchester’s universities contribute to the success of schools across the city 

by working with the Council’s School Governance team to promote 
opportunities for university staff and academics to sit on school governing 
bodies. UoM run an award-winning initiative to encourage staff to become 
governors and run regular network events and conferences to support staff to 
be effective in their roles. At the time of writing there are approximately 70 
governors appointed from UoM serving in Manchester schools. 

 
2.4 The University of Manchester is also a participant in the city’s Anchors & 

Living Wage Pilot. This aims to promote both the living wage and local 
employment opportunities within the participating organisations and within 
their wider sectors. UoM’s involvement will help Manchester become an 
accredited living wage place by the end of 2022, raising the living standards of 
residents and directly helping to eliminate one of the leading causes of poverty 
in the city. 

 

Page 17

Item 6



3.0  Research, teaching and economic impact  
 
3.1. Manchester’s universities commissioned Public First to undertake some 

analysis of the research, teaching and economic impact of the two 
universities. The research was undertaken in 2020 and reviewed available 
data for 2018/19 which was obviously pre-pandemic.  

 
3.2 In total, Public First estimated that the Manchester universities created £5.3 

billion in value for the UK in 2018/19, £2.1 billion for Greater Manchester 
(2.7% of the GM economy) and £1.2 billion for Manchester. 

 
3.3 This £1.2 billion of value for Manchester from the two universities comprised of 

three key areas: 
 

 Manchester Greater 
Manchester 

UK 

Teaching impact by increasing 
the human capital and skills of 
its students for the economy 

£217 million £405 million £1.2 billion 

Research impact from the 
spillover economic impacts of 
research 

£15 million £86 million £2.0 billion 

Economic impact from direct, 
indirect and induced activity 

£945 million £1.6 billion £2.0 billion 

    

Total  £1.2 billion £2.1 billion £5.3 billion 

 
3.4 Economic impact  
 
3.4.1 The nature of any university’s teaching and research impacts are that they 

spillover much more into the national, rather than the local, economy. 
However, the opposite is true of the economic impacts, which are 
disproportionately located in Manchester and Greater Manchester.  

 
3.4.2 The £945 million of economic impacts in Manchester comprise of the 

following:  
 

 Manchester 

Direct   

Operational spending on salaries and finance costs £222 million 

Student subsistence spending £282 million 

Visitor spending £12 million 

Indirect  

Supply chain / procurement £60 million 

Student subsistence spending £136 million 

Visitor spending £5 million 

Induced  

Staff spending £58 million 

Supply chain / procurement £34 million 

Page 18

Item 6



Student subsistence spending £125 million 

Visitor spending £10 million 

Total £945 million 

 
3.4.3 These considerable economic impacts can be explained through Manchester 

hosting one of the largest student populations in Europe, with numbers 
averaging around 100,000 students in the city region and in excess of 70,000 
in the city itself. One in five students in the city is also an international student. 
The University of Manchester is home to more than 44,000 students and 
Manchester Metropolitan University to around 33,000. These students 
contribute £543 million to Manchester alone through direct, indirect and 
induced expenditure to the economy, as well as contributing to the skills, 
creativity and vibrancy of the city. Each year Man Met graduates 950 teachers, 
350 nurses, 160 physiotherapists, 570 with other health qualifications, and 220 
social workers. This pipeline of graduate talent provides the skilled workers 
needed by employers and essential public services across the country.  

 
3.4.4 The University of Manchester employs around 11,000 staff and Manchester 

Metropolitan University employs over 4,000 staff. These comprise of academic 
and support roles at all occupational levels. For example, both universities 
employ significant numbers of staff in areas such as hospitality and catering, 
professional services, technical, manual and administrative roles. These staff 
spend money in the economy. All staff are remunerated with at least the Living 
Wage Foundation accredited rate of pay and staff enjoy a wide range of other 
benefits such as occupational pensions and flexible working. Both universities 
are committed to achieving the GM Good Employment Charter status. 

 
CASE STUDY: ID Manchester 
 

ID Manchester is an 18.2 acre, £1.5 billion gross development value project 
that will create a world leading innovation district and 10,000 jobs on The 
University of Manchester’s former North Campus (the former UMIST 
campus). It is the next phase of development of the Oxford Road Corridor 
and will create around 2.6 million sq ft of new office, laboratory and 
collaboration spaces to incubate and accelerate the growth trajectories of 
new spin outs and start-ups, support SMEs to innovate and grow, and attract 
new R&D-intensive global inward investment to the region. ID Manchester 
has been explicitly designed to maximise the economic impact of the 
existing R&D assets on the Oxford Road Corridor which have been 
supported through past UK government investment into scientific excellence, 
including the Henry Royce Institute, the National Graphene Institute, the 
Graphene Engineering Innovation Centre, the £25m Christabel Pankhurst 
Institute for Health Technology, and the Manchester Institute of 
Biotechnology, all of which are located nearby. 
 
The University of Manchester announced Bruntwood SciTech as its 
preferred Joint Venture partner to deliver ID Manchester in June 2021, which 
will directly leverage over £800m of private sector investment into the 
development. Bruntwood SciTech is a partnership between Bruntwood and 
Legal & General and is the UK’s leading developer of innovation districts.  

Page 19

Item 6



3.4.5 Other economic impacts can be seen from the £94 million of procurement and 
supply chain impacts from the indirect and induced supply chain spend of the 
two universities. Both of Manchester’s universities are major anchor 
institutions in the city and have worked with the Council to maximise the social 
value opportunities from their spend. 

 
3.4.6 Each year, Man Met spends more than £100 million on procurement. The 

University creates £525 million in additional demand for the Greater 
Manchester economy through the direct value created by the university, its 
wider supply chain and procurement spending with local businesses, the 
additional local spending of its staff, students and their visitors.  

 
3.4.7 To deliver Social Value, the Man Met Procurement Strategy incorporates 

opportunities for creating Social Value into all of contracts, encouraging 
suppliers to offer opportunities for employment, training, placements and work 
experience to communities and students. They are encouraged to be 
transparent about their supply chains, ensuring compliance with the Modern 
Slavery Act and Health and Safety, whilst good working practices are also 
assessed as part of the tender process. Each lead construction contractor 
demonstrates a commitment to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and 
delivers local benefits through a CSR plan, which include measurable 
commitments to local employment, skills development and community 
engagement. 

 

CASE STUDY: The University of Manchester Engineering Campus 
Development  
 

With a value of £400 million, The University of Manchester Engineering 

Campus Development (MECD) project was among the largest construction 

programmes undertaken in British higher education, totalling some 11 

football pitches in size. What’s unique is not only its scale; it’s created a 

record in British higher education by delivering £19.7 million of social value, 

created through the generation of local jobs, apprenticeships, cash grants 

and pro-bono support for local communities.  Using the sector-leading 

‘Social Value Portal’ tool with its construction partner Balfour Beatty it was 

calculated that £19.7 million of social value was created for local 

communities, setting a record for all construction programmes to date in 

British higher education. The project has now won awards at both the 2020 

Times Higher Education Awards and 2021 British Construction Industry 

Awards in recognition of this achievement.  

This £19.7 million of social value consists of: 

 182 new jobs created (target 110), including 95 jobs for unemployed 
people furthest from the labour market and 87 apprenticeships. Of these, 
15 were rehabilitated offenders and one was from local authority care; 

 3,000 schoolchildren from local state schools were engaged across 29 
STEM activities; 

Page 20

Item 6

file:///C:/Users/55110562/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/O1IZET1F/Procurement%20Strategy%202019.pdf


 43 local community groups were engaged and supported; £60,000 was 
contributed to a joint University Community Construction Fund for local 
community grants; and £18,000 raised for a local homelessness charity; 

 A maximum score of 45 out of 45 was achieved in the national 
‘Considerate Constructors Scheme’ covering positive impact on 
community and the environment (target 40); 

 23 careers events were delivered for University of Manchester students; 
4 new graduate trainee positions created; and 10 student internships; 

Quotes from beneficiaries:  

On jobs, Edgar, who experienced homelessness, was supported into a 
plastering role. He said: “Through this job opportunity I’ve been able to move 
into my own accommodation and move my life on.”  

David, initially offered a three-week work trial, said: “I was previously 
unemployed for over 13 years. Three weeks into my placement I was offered 
a full-time role and this has changed my life for the better.”  

James, an armed forces leaver, said: “I joined work on MECD as a labourer 
but have already retrained towards a job I love in waste management.” 

 
4.0 Education and Skills 
 
4.1 By increasing the human capital and skills of their students, the Manchester 

universities increase Manchester’s productivity by £217m. Approximately 
36,000 graduates each year within the region seek to enter the labour market 
and approximately 10,000 within the city. Detailed analysis of student 
numbers and graduate retention in the city has been included in a separate 
report to the Committee.  

 
4.2 Manchester’s universities, along with twelve other colleges and universities 

from across Greater Manchester, came together to develop a joint 
commitment to addressing the skills and economic challenges facing the city 
region. Collectively, these fourteen universities and colleges in Greater 
Manchester support 200,000 learners annually and contribute £2.5 billion to 
the regional economy. The joint statement set out closer cooperation on:  

 

 Levelling-up across Greater Manchester and nationally to heal and build 
back better from the COVID-19 pandemic 

 Lifelong learning 

 Mental health and wellbeing 

 Closer work with Greater Manchester Combined Authority to support 
regional priorities 

 Supporting health, culture and equality 
 
4.3 Manchester’s universities are also members of the Greater Manchester Higher 

programme along with the Manchester College and Royal Northern College of 
Music. This programme aims to improve the provision of information, advice 
and guidance about progression routes to higher education to raise 

Page 21

Item 6



expectations of young people and help widen participation. Activities are 
aimed at Year 9-13 learners, their parents, carers, and supporters and are 
targeted at the parts of the region where, historically, the number of young 
people going to university is at its lowest. The programme also provides 
outreach activities for schools and colleges located outside of these areas. 

 

CASE STUDY: The Manchester Access Programme 
 
Operating since 2006, the Manchester Access Programme is the University 
of Manchester’s flagship social mobility programme for local Year 12 
students in Greater Manchester from disadvantaged backgrounds. It has 
supported thousands of local learners to enter professions including 
medicine, dentistry, nursing, accounting, law, business, engineering and 
teaching. Through advice, financial support and lower admissions offers it 
supports students to gain a place at the University of Manchester, or another 
research-intensive university, through online events, workshops, and an 
academic assignment. Accessing the scheme requires applicants to meet 
the following criteria: 

 live or study at a school or college in Greater Manchester; 

 attend a state, post-16 school or college, and are studying a two-year 
Level 3 qualification (such as A-levels or a BTEC); 

 be a Year 12 (lower sixth) student when they apply; 

 have at least five grades 9 to 6 at GCSE (or equivalent, such as GNVQ, 
BTEC) when they apply. 

 have attended a state secondary school that they did not need to pay for; 

 neither parent nor carer has a university-level degree or equivalent in the 
UK or abroad. An application may be considered if a parent/carer is 
currently studying their first degree or graduated in the last ten years; 

 be a home registered student or expect to be a UK national or have 
'settled status'  

Each year 600 students benefit from the programme with a disproportionate 
number of these hailing from Manchester.  

 
CASE STUDY: MMU First Generation  
 
The MMU First Generation programme supports Year 12 and Year 13 
students living or studying in the North West that would like to go to 
university but whose parents did not. The programme provides practical 
support and application guidance to students to help them access and then 
transition to university. Students who progress through the programme onto 
a full-time undergraduate degree at MMU receive financial and continued 
personal and professional support throughout their studies. They also qualify 
for a First Generation bursary of £1,000 and the opportunity to attend a fully-
funded workplace residential. The programme aims to help: 

 support students in their university applications; 

 improve skills that help them to succeed in their current studies and at 
university, including research skills, referencing academic writing, and 
communication skills; 

 prepare them for the different types of teaching and learning at 
university; 

Page 22

Item 6



 provide information about the different courses available; 

 show them what it's like to be a university student. 
 
To date, 148 of the 426 students who have progressed to Man Met since the 
scheme was launched were from Manchester (35%). 

 

CASE STUDY: Manchester Metropolitan University’s Degree 
Apprenticeships Programme 
 
Degree apprenticeships were established in 2015 as a powerful combination 
of study and on the job learning. With 2,573 apprentice starts to-date, 
Manchester Metropolitan University is now partnered with more than 500 
employers and is an Ofsted Grade 1 Outstanding provider. 
 
Degree apprenticeships are particularly important for young people from 
disadvantaged backgrounds who might not have been motivated to embark 
on a traditional degree, but also for those already in work without a degree 
who are looking to progress. Apprenticeships are the right intervention for 
those with intersectional disadvantage.  
 
In the last six years Man Met’s programme has seen increasing starts for 
women in STEM, for Black and minority ethnic apprentices from 
disadvantaged backgrounds, and increased retention and achievement rates 
for apprentices from areas with a low Indices of Multiple Deprivation ranking 
in the Income, Employment and Education and Skills domains. They are 
also benefitting employers by growing talent and reducing skills shortages in 
Manchester’s economy. 
 
40% of the degree apprentices are from Greater Manchester. 40% are the 
first generation in their family to go to university and 36% are from the most 
deprived areas. 
 
Man Met’s degree apprenticeships programme has been voted the highest-
rated university provider for degree apprenticeships in the UK for three years 
running (RateMyApprenticeship Awards 2019, 2020, 2021). 
 

 
5.0 Research 
 
5.1 The spillover economic impact of the university’s research generates another 

£2 billion in value for the UK economy and £15 million for Manchester’s 
economy. The University of Manchester is globally renowned for its research 
and has identified five research beacons which are: Advanced Materials, 
Biotechnology, Cancer, Energy and Global Inequalities. Manchester 
Metropolitan University has a Research and Knowledge Exchange Strategy 
which commits to research excellence that:  

 

 Has real-world benefits for society, culture, the environment and the 
economy 

Page 23

Item 6



 Addresses global challenges and contributes to government industrial 
strategy 

 Encourages links between research, professional practice and teaching 

 Ensures faculties can rank nationally in specific areas of expertise 

 Leads the sector in KTPs that meet 100% Full Economic Costing targets 

 Creates an effective and inspiring ecosystem of internal and external 
knowledge 

5.2 Man Met is ranked in the top 10 in the UK for creating Knowledge Transfer 
Partnerships – turning research into business growth.  Since 2013, the 
University has been awarded 33 Knowledge Transfer Partnerships (KTPs) 
with Greater Manchester businesses, 28 of which have been SMEs. This 
amounts to a total funding investment within the Greater Manchester area of 
£3.5 million with a match funding contribution from business totalling £2 
million. 

5.3 There are currently four live KTPs in Manchester, covering: 

 Using artificial intelligence to improve productivity and efficiency of 
integrated vending machine services. 

 To develop product innovations using Artificial Intelligence and 
psychometric profiling, for a company that provides market intelligence on 
children and families. 

 To investigate a type of stem cell, to develop it into a cancer treatment.  

 To develop a faster new product development process for a company 
specialising in flavourings for the food industry. 

 
5.4 Other important examples of how Man Met translates and applies its research 

can be found in Innospace, a business incubator that gives start-up 
businesses direct access to expertise, and initiatives such as Print City (which 
provides advanced 3D printing facilities to businesses) and the Fuel Cell 
Innovation Centre that is at the forefront of developing low-carbon solutions for 
the green economy. 

 
5.4 Academics from Manchester’s universities have undertaken significant 

amounts of research since the start of the COVID-19 pandemic, including 
where it has hit the hardest, how it affects certain groups, and how its impact 
can be mitigated. So far, they have carried out 234 research projects on 
COVID-19 between them, with a further 156, and growing number of, studies 
on the way. 

 
5.5 The School of Digital Arts is an interdisciplinary school at Manchester 

Metropolitan University – a £35m investment into the workspaces, networks, 
teaching and research that will drive the next generation of creative content. 
Every year from 2021, over 1,000 students will study disciplines that span film, 
animation, UX design, photography, games design, AI and more, often 
working on live projects with industry partners, frequently collaborating with 
fellow students and researchers. 

 

Page 24

Item 6



5.6 The University of Manchester hosts the world-renowned Tyndall Centre for 
Climate Change Research. Scientists at the Tyndall Centre helped 
Manchester become one of the first cities in the world to set Paris COP21 
compliant science-based targets in November 2018. The work on establishing 
a carbon budget and our zero carbon 2038 target has now been rolled out to a 
number of other local authorities and cities in the UK and internationally. The 
Tyndall Centre continue to be an active member of the Manchester Climate 
Change Agency advisory groups and their scientists have undertaken further 
work to analyse the city’s emissions including reviewing emissions from 
aviation.  

 
5.7 The Manchester Fuel Cell Innovation Centre is a landmark £4.1 million state-

of-the-art laboratory at Manchester Metropolitan University, leading the way in 
harnessing renewable energy. The Centre is exploring the pure science of the 
fuel cell itself, driving engagement with industry on a local, national and 
international scale, and developing the technology talent of tomorrow. A 
strategic asset for the city and University, the Centre brings together the latest 
technology, world-leading academics and industry professionals to create 
new, clean electrolysers and fuel cells. It brings alive the synergy between 
materials research and engineering. The focus is on next-generation energy, 
which will outperform current fossil fuel alternatives both in terms of 
environmental efficiency and cost effectiveness.  

 
5.8 BeeWell (www.gmbeewell.org) is a new wellbeing programme led by The  

University of Manchester, the Anna Freud centre and the Greater Manchester 
Combined Authority, that combines academic expertise with youth-led change 
to make the wellbeing of young people everybody’s business. Designed by 
young people, #BeeWell will survey the wellbeing of pupils in secondary 
schools across Greater Manchester from Autumn 2021, for at least three 
years, and use the results to deliver positive change in all our communities. 
Over 200 secondary schools (60,000 young people) are now signed up to take 
part which represents 90% of mainstream settings across Greater 
Manchester, alongside independent and special education needs schools, 
pupil referral units and alternative provision.  

 

CASE STUDY: Institute of Place Management (IPM) 
 
In 2015, Manchester City Council Members agreed that they wanted to 
develop a more strategic approach to the future management of district 
centres. They agreed to establish a subgroup to contribute to and review this 
strategy, working with the IPM based at Manchester Metropolitan University. 
The first task was to understand trends affecting district centres and possible 
direction of the Subgroup’s work – drawing on consultations with IPM. 
 
The IPM began working with Manchester’s district centres in early 2017, 
delivering a programme focused on ‘Vital and Viable’ places and working 
with communities in Chorlton, Gorton, Harpurhey, Northenden and 
Withington. The work was designed to support place making interventions, 
strengthen the local capacity for change, and to help make informed 
decisions about the future of each place. 

Page 25

Item 6



 
Following this, an IPM Place Management Pilot was established to 
understand the key factors that local centres can influence. Research was 
undertaken in Chorlton, Gorton, Harpurhey and Northenden, with a view to 
promoting active collaboration in these centres to bring about change. The 
Pilot drew on initial district centre performance assessments by IPM 
researchers, consultation with local stakeholders, and a report of 
recommendations. 
 
In addition to recommendations specific to each Centre, the IPM reviewed 
all the pilots and produced four summary recommendations for the District 
Centre Subgroup; 
 

 Work should be undertaken to develop targeted and place specific 
interventions to build local collaboration 

 Work should be undertaken to increase local capacity to effect change in 
areas of the city where existing capacity is low 

 Efforts should be devoted to enhancing existing local collaborative 
networks 

 Monitoring data on centre performance should be collected and shared 
with partners so that evidence based actions to improve centres could be 
taken. 

 
Further work took place in another six centres – Withington, Fallowfield, 
Rusholme, Levenshulme, Victoria Road, and Cheetham Hill – and focused 
on widening the evidence base, developing learning, and the creation of an 
action plan geared towards influencing local and regional policy. This work 
has helped to support project development including the Withington Village 
Strategic Regeneration Framework and bids to the government Levelling Up 
Fund. 
 
The Vital & Viable project has also informed further policy development work 
through the Area Based Collaborative Entrepreneurship in Cities European 
Partnership (ABCitiEs). Working in conjunction with Institutions and local 
authorities in four European cities (Amsterdam, Vilnius, Varazdin and 
Athens), the project has taken the learnings from the work in Manchester 
and is now seeking to embed this in local policy. 
 

 
6.0  Business support, innovation, enterprise and start-ups 
 
6.1 Whether its splitting the atom, the development of the modern computer or the 

isolation of graphene, many of the most transformative ideas of our age were 
formed in Manchester. These produce a range of spin-out benefits to the wider 
economy and health system, as can be seen from the examples of ID 
Manchester, Health Innovation Manchester and across the wider Oxford Road 
Corridor. For example, the discovery of Graphene in 2004 led to significant 
investment in advanced materials research across the city including the 
National Graphene Centre, the Graphene Engineering Innovation Centre and 
the Henry Royce Institute. Today, this is benefiting local SMEs through an 

Page 26

Item 6



ERDF/Northern Powerhouse funded Sustainable Materials Innovation Hub 
which is improving the understanding, use, and consumption of plastics across 
the region and offering free advice to organisations looking to make a change 
and support them with assessment facilities to develop innovative solutions. 

 
6.2  Data from 2018 shows that 148 students from the two universities were 

involved in creating start-ups and The University of Manchester brought in 
£5.5 million in public money for work on local growth and regeneration.  

 
6.3  Both universities are key drivers behind Innovation GM, which is a £7bn 

blueprint for translational innovation between Greater Manchester and 
Government. This aims to catalyse inclusive economic growth to support the 
UK in achieving its goals of levelling up the North, increasing productivity and 
increasing global trade. Innovators from business, science, academia and 
local government are using the Innovation GM partnership as the basis of 
formal collaboration deals with Government and it is expected that it could 
create as many as 100,000 jobs and boost the economy by £7 billion across 
Greater Manchester 

 

CASE STUDY: Greater Manchester AI Foundry and Cyber Foundry 
 
The Greater Manchester AI Foundry is a cutting-edge scheme that has 
delivered Artificial Intelligence expertise to 100 of Greater Manchester’s 
small and medium enterprises. 
 
The foundry, which is led by Manchester Metropolitan University, with The 
University of Manchester, the University of Salford and Lancaster University, 
allows SMEs to undertake introductory business support training and insight 
into the latest AI technologies, market opportunities and ideas to develop 
new products. 
Businesses can then progress onto phase two, a technical support 
programme to help companies develop proof-of-concept for new products 
and services. Currently 20 SMEs have progressed to phase two with more 
due as the programme continues. 
 
A year before the AI Foundry was launched, the same Universities launched 
the Greater Manchester Cyber Foundry, a £6 million project to provide 
bespoke cyber security support to SMEs. 
 
The Foundry is part of the wider push to make Manchester a digital leader. 
The regional digital and creative sector alone generates £3 billion in output 
each year, highlighting the importance of protection for key industries from 
cyber threats.  
Strong cyber security is essential for other important sectors in Manchester, 
such as finance and banking and Industry 4.0 applications, where cyber 
physical systems are used.  
 

 
 
 

Page 27

Item 6

https://gmaifoundry.ac.uk/about/
https://gmcyberfoundry.ac.uk/


 

CASE STUDY: The University of Manchester Innovation Factory  
 
The University of Manchester Innovation Factory’s mission is to use 
intellectual property to create positive social and economic impact. The 
Innovation Factory works with academic and student inventors to identify 
research that has the potential to create value. It then translates these into a 
form where they can be used to benefit society as a whole. 
 
Access to innovations may be created via technology licensing or the 
formation of new spin-out companies. The Innovation Factory aims to 
provide a world class service to academic colleagues as well as industry; 
entrepreneurs; licensees; VC & angel investors and corporate venturing 
partners. 
 
The Innovation Factory aims to be one of the world’s most effective 
Technology Transfer organisations. In 2020/21 it spun out 13 new 
enterprises in areas including gene software, battery charging, mental health 
and advanced cancer treatment. 
 
The average external investment per formal spin-out was £4.2 million and 
the estimated current turnover of all active firms per active spin-out was 
£24.3 million in 2018.   
 

 
7.0 Public engagement and reputation 
 
7.1 Whilst this report demonstrates a range of ‘hard’ economic benefits, the 

impact of Manchester’s universities on engagement with the public is also 
significant. The University of Manchester runs major cultural attractions 
including Manchester Museum, Manchester Academy, the Whitworth, the 
John Rylands Library, and the Race Relations Resource Centre. Manchester 
Metropolitan University oversees the North West Film Archive and Children’s 
Literature Festival. The two universities worked with Manchester City Council 
to lead the successful UNESCO City of Literature bid. 

 
7.2 Public First developed an engagement metric to measure the frequency of the  

two universities’ engagement with the public across dimensions – including 
public events, mentoring and exhibitions – and found that a member of the 
public in Greater Manchester came into contact with one of the two 
universities 4.3 times per minute, or once every 14 seconds across the course 
of a typical year. 

 
7.3  The national and global reputation of the city and the universities are 

intertwined. Manchester’s ‘original modern’ reputation around the world is built 
on the pioneering discoveries of academics such as Rutherford, Turing and 
Geim. Key public figures are associated with the universities, including Brian 
Cox, Jeanette Winterston, Carol Ann Duffy, Lemn Sissay, David Olusoga, 
Michael Wood, and Gary Younge. The University of Manchester is the most 
popular in the UK for undergraduate applicants and leads 1,200 universities 

Page 28

Item 6



around the world for impact towards the UN Sustainable Development Goals 
as measured by the Times Higher Education. Manchester Metropolitan 
University has been in the top 3 of the UK’s People and Planet university 
league table for each of the last six years.  

 
7.4  The Manchester Poetry Library opened its doors in September 2021 at 

Manchester Metropolitan University. Home to a rich collection of books and 
recordings, poetry in the many languages of the city of Manchester, children’s 
poetry, and an annual programme of events, the library is the first of its kind in 
the North West. It is a rich resource for the people of the city, with a year-
round event programme that builds on Manchester’s outstanding reputation as 
a home of poetry and creative writing.  

 
7.5 The Institute of Sport will open in Manchester city centre in early 2022. It will 

be a global leader in sport education, sport research, and sport impact and the 
new state-of-the-art building will have space for delivery of teaching up to 
1,800 students, with 500+ graduates by 2023. It will be a place that will unlock 
the power of sport, bringing benefits to society relating to health and wellbeing, 
economic regeneration, and cultural enhancement. 
 

7.6  Over 18,000 international students study at The University of Manchester and  
over 3,000 at Manchester Metropolitan University. The University of 
Manchester has more than 500,000 alumni in 190 countries and Manchester 
Metropolitan University more than 300,000 alumni in 144 countries. These 
provide global reach, soft power, connections and trading opportunities with a 
significant network of people around the world that have lived in, and remain 
connected to, the city. 

 

CASE STUDY: Joint Education Institute between Manchester 
Metropolitan University and Hubei University 
 
The Manchester Metropolitan Joint Institute, Hubei University was officially 
launched in October 2021 to provide new education programmes in Wuhan, 
China. 
The new Institute builds on the growing partnership between Manchester 
Met and the city of Wuhan, which is a twin city of Manchester. 
 
Students at the joint institute (JI) will be able to study on three initial science 
and engineering undergraduate programmes, with further postgraduate 
programmes to follow next year. Students also have the opportunity to 
spend part of their degree course studying at Manchester Met. 
 
The JI is the next step in the University’s plans to build ties with China, 
increasing activity in the country and promoting study opportunities in 
Manchester. 
The new institute comes a year after Man Met’s office premises in Wuhan 
were officially opened by the British Ambassador to China, Dame Caroline 
Wilson. Wuhan has been the University’s regional headquarters since June 
2019. 

Page 29

Item 6



The partnership is helping to build students’ cultural understanding and 
significantly enhance their abilities to thrive in diverse, multicultural 
environments both in the UK and China. 

 
8.0 Next steps 
 
8.1 The relationships between the universities and the city are interdependent. All 

our higher education institutions contribute to the success of the city through 
their contribution to talent, research, commercialisation of technology, social 
responsibility and sustainability and the opportunities they create for our 
residents. Similarly, Manchester itself contributes to the success of our 
universities through our offer of good quality employment opportunities, city 
centre living, a broad and varied cultural and leisure offer and our diverse and 
welcoming people. 

 
8.2 Therefore it is in Manchester’s interest to support the continued success of our 

HEIs. The city will continue to work closely with the universities to make sure 
they are rooted in place and can make the greatest possible contribution to 
positive outcomes for our residents, businesses and other organisations. We 
will also support the development of the university estates including the new 
ID Manchester development as a key driver of the city centre’s success. 

 
9.0 Recommendations  
 
9.1  It is recommended that the Committee consider and comment on the content 

of the report including the detailed case studies. 

Page 30

Item 6



Manchester City Council 
Report for Information 

 
Report to: Economy Scrutiny Committee – 11 November 2021 
 
Subject: Student numbers and graduate retention in the city 
 
Report of:  Director of Inclusive Economy 
 

 
Summary 
 
The purpose of this report is to provide an overview of the student body studying at 
the higher education institutions (HEIs) in Manchester with a specific focus on the 
two largest institutions: The University of Manchester (UoM) and Manchester 
Metropolitan University (MMU).  
 
The report also provides an overview of the numbers of graduates remaining in the 
city post-graduation and includes the emerging picture of the impact of COVID-19 on 
the student body, graduate retention and attraction and the local response to support 
the gradate labour market. 
 
Recommendations 
 
The Economy Scrutiny Committee is invited to comment on the report.  
 

 
Wards Affected: All 
 

 

Our Manchester Strategy outcomes Summary of how this report aligns to the 
OMS 

A thriving and sustainable city: 
supporting a diverse and distinctive 
economy that creates jobs and 
opportunities 

This report identifies the role of the graduate 
talent pipeline in the diversification of the 
economy in developing and sustaining 
employment and wider opportunities for the 
city's residents. 

Environmental Impact Assessment -  

Any growth in student numbers would increase overall carbon emissions in the city, 
however per-capita emissions from students are likely to be lower than average.  
The city’s universities and higher education sector play an important role in in terms of 
producing a talent pipeline of graduates with the skills, knowledge and mindset to 
address the challenge and maximise the opportunities presented by the green 
economy. The ongoing challenge will be to ensure that these skills remain with the 
city's economy to support zero carbon ambitions.  

Page 31

Item 7



A highly skilled city: world class and 
home-grown talent sustaining the 
city’s economic success 

This report identifies the importance of the 
university student body and the graduate talent 
pipeline in supporting economic diversification 
and growth. The report also describes work 
undertaken to support Manchester residents to 
achieve degrees and equivalent qualifications. 

A progressive and equitable city: 
making a positive contribution by 
unlocking the potential of our 
communities 

This report highlights work done in the 
education sector to support young Mancunians 
to progress to higher education and higher 
technical education as a route to high quality 
employment opportunities. 

A liveable and low carbon city: a 
destination of choice to live, visit, work 

Please refer to Environmental Impact 
Assessment.  

A connected city: world class 
infrastructure and connectivity to drive 
growth 

The report identifies the international reputation 
of Manchester’s higher education institutions 
on the global stage. 

 
Contact Officers: 
 
Name: Angela Harrington 
Position: Director of Inclusive Economy 
Telephone: 0161 234 1501 
E-mail: angela.harrington@manchester.gov.uk 
 
Name: Lisa Turner 
Position: Principal Policy Officer 
Telephone: 07977516995   
E-mail: lisa.turner2@manchester.gov.uk 
 
Background documents (available for public inspection): 
 
The following documents disclose key facts on which the report is based and have 
been relied upon in preparing the report.  Copies of the background documents are 
available up to 4 years after the date of the meeting.  If you would like a copy please 
contact one of the contact officers above. 
 

 Our Manchester Strategy – Forward to 2025 

 The Greater Manchester Local Industrial Strategy 

 Our Manchester Industrial Strategy 

 The State of the City 2020 

 Developing a More Inclusive Economy – Our Manchester Industrial Strategy 

 Powering Recovery: Manchester’s Recovery and Investment Plan 

 Skills for jobs: lifelong learning for opportunity and growth 

 Graduate Market 2021, Highfliers.co.uk 

 Conclusion of Review of Post 18 Education, DfE 

 Class of 2020, Resolution Foundation 

Page 32

Item 7



1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 This report provides an overview of higher education student numbers in 

Manchester and retention of this student body in the city post-graduation. The 
report also describes the graduate labour market conditions and local 
interventions to support the graduate pipeline. 
 

1.2 Students come to Manchester from all over the UK and the world to take 
advantage of the world class education offer. The city hosts one of the largest 
student populations in Europe, with numbers averaging around 100,000 
students in the city region and in excess of 70,000 in the city itself, with 1 in 5 
students in the city an international student. Annually, approximately 36,000 
students graduate within the region and approximately 10,000 within the city. 
This report will provide an overview and comparison of the student numbers in 
the last 4 academic years by institution. 

 
1.3 Manchester’s HEIs are home to world class facilities and specialisms, centres 

of excellence, research and expertise and as such have supported growth in 
the city’s key sectors. The large and growing sectors bolstered by the city’s 
graduate talent pool include: business, financial and professional services; 
creative and digital, cyber, fintech, bioscience, advanced material and 
research and development. Despite the pandemic, and due to the responsive 
nature of the industries, growth in these sectors has been experienced 
throughout 2020/21 and is projected to continue. 

 
1.4 According to research undertaken by the Centre for Cities,1 Manchester has 

the largest outside graduate talent pool outside of London. This talent pool has 
supported the development of an increasingly skilled and diverse workforce. In 
turn this has resulted in elevated levels of confidence in Manchester and 
increased levels of inward investment. A rise in graduates within Manchester 
is a positive trend that sets Manchester above the national average for the 
proportion of residents who hold level 4 qualifications and above. Despite an 
increase in graduates, the retention and attraction of graduates, skills 
shortages remain across a number of key sectors, and graduate 
underemployment remains an issue nationally and within Manchester. In 
addition, labour shortage issues have risen to the fore following the pandemic.  

 
1.5 Prior to the pandemic, employment growth in Manchester had been driven by 

new businesses investing in the city. Businesses have been attracted to 
Manchester by sectoral strengths, as a more affordable alternative to London 
and as a gateway to the North. In addition, there has been continuous growth 
in business start-ups across the city, often fuelled by the universities and 
graduates, which has supported further inward investment. As well as 
supporting graduate attraction and retention, investment in the city has also 
benefited residents and the wider economy through an increased number and 
range of employment opportunities e.g., administration and professional 
support services, hospitality, and retail. The graduate talent pipeline is an 
essential component of achieving the city's strategic ambitions and plays an 

                                            
1 https://www.centreforcities.org/reader/great-british-brain-drain 

Page 33

Item 7



important role in supporting the city and regional economy, and in providing 
opportunity for the city's communities and residents. The wider economic and 
social impact of the HE institutions are discussed in a separate report 
presented to today’s committee: Contribution of Higher Education Institutes to 
Manchester’s economy.  

 
1.6 Manchester’s strategic economic aims are set out in Developing a More 

Inclusive Economy – Our Manchester Industrial Strategy and Powering 
Recovery: Manchester's Recovery and Investment Plan. The Our Manchester 
Industrial Strategy set out three key pillars of people, place and prosperity that 
will support the development of a more inclusive economy and ensure that all 
Manchester’s residents can participate in and benefit from the city’s economic 
growth.  In relation to retaining graduate talent in the city, opportunities for 
strategic investment identified in the Recovery Plan, particularly in relation to 
innovation, will provide ongoing graduate employment opportunities and 
ensure that Manchester remains an attractive choice to graduates from 
Manchester’s HEIs and beyond. The plan also identifies that Manchester has 
the potential to leverage GM’s science, research, innovation and teaching-
asset base to create new large-scale clusters of high-value economic activities 
to drive regional growth and create a more productive economy with greater 
Research and Development activity. The Recovery Plan also lays out a two-
year programme with £36m per annum investment to support skills 
development in 6,000 people and specifically includes a 14m Graduate 
Upskilling Programme. 

 
2.0 Background 
 
2.1  National post 18 education policy 
 
2.2 The Augar Review published in May 2019 reviewed academic and technical 

qualifications across the post-18 education system to ensure a more demand 
led skills system and to promote parity of esteem across academic and 
technical pathways. The Review highlighted the need for increased investment 
in higher level technical skills particularly at Level 4 and 5 and a need to level 
up investment in education and training for students choosing a non-HE route. 
This is particularly for important to ensure choice, equality and inclusion 
across the system and in terms of meeting skills needs across the city's 
sectors. 

 
2.3 The Skills for Life: Lifelong learning for opportunity for growth white paper 

published in January 2021 begins to set out a response to the Augar Review 
by setting out planned reforms to Further Education (FE) technical training and 
education. The white paper has a focus on: employer led post-16 
development; funding for adults to upskill; flexible funding to support post-18 
education for higher technical qualifications at level 4 and 5; improved 
accountability of the FE sector; investment in FE estates; streamlined FE 
funding and employer led teacher training and strategy to attract talent to the 
FE sector. The October 2021 Budget did not announce any HE funding 
commitments, a HE White Paper is now expected later this year to cover 

Page 34

Item 7



significant policy areas including admissions, tuition fees and Lifelong Loan 
Entitlements.  

 
2.4 Despite evidence highlighting the economic impact of COVID-19 impact on 

young people, and calls from the sector, there were gaps in national COVID-
19 policy response and support for graduates. For example, the Kickstart 
scheme, launched in September 2020 provides fully subsidised work 
placement opportunities, paid at the national minimum wage for 16 to 24-year-
olds at risk of long-term unemployment. Participants must be in receipt of 
Universal Credit in order to access the scheme. The Universal Credit criteria 
and relatively short-term length of the scheme may discourage and/or exclude 
recent graduates from joining the scheme. Feedback from providers in 
Manchester, both anecdotally and through the Council’s Kickstart recruitment, 
suggests an increasing number of graduates accessing the scheme. 
Graduates accessing the scheme have accessed the labour market, gained 
valuable work experience and built confidence. As such, the Kickstart scheme 
has prevented graduates in Manchester from being displaced from the labour 
market for an extended period. The challenge for the Council, DWP and 
partners is to support suitable progression and career development 
opportunities following a Kickstart placement. Ensuring that graduates are not 
under-employed, and that the skills and talents are fully utilised to support the 
individual, the businesses and the city's economy. In addition, delays with the 
implementation of the scheme nationally and locally has resulted in Kickstart 
opportunities not being available at scale for young people in the city.   
 

2.5 Despite a specific national policy response for graduates and youth 
unemployment rates spiking more than any other age group at the start of the 
pandemic, evidence now shows that youth employment is recovering more 
quickly that other age groups. The Council’s September 2021 Economy 
Dashboard Data shows that the 16-24 age group had the largest decline, 
2.1%, in Universal Credit Claimants that any other age group. 

 
3.0 Overview of Manchester’s higher education provision 
 
3.1 Within the city the University of Manchester (UoM), Manchester Metropolitan 

University (MMU), Royal Northern College of Music (RNCM) and UCEN 
Manchester provide a plethora of undergraduate and postgraduate courses in 
academic and vocational fields. In the wider city region, the University of 
Bolton and University of Salford and UA92 provide further higher educational 
opportunities that add value to the city region's talent pool and employment 
base. 

 
3.2 In recent years, Manchester has become an increasingly young city, in part 

driven by the strong higher education (HE) provision and ensuing graduate 
retention and attraction of graduate talent from universities outside of the city. 
Higher Education Statistics Agency (HESA) data shows that in the academic 
year 2018/19, 73,299 students enrolled at Manchester’s two largest 
universities, UoM and MMU. This cohort increased to 73,906 in 2019/20. HEIs 
have reported increases in 2020/2021 admissions and an increase in 
applications for 2022/2023 study. 

Page 35

Item 7



3.3 Manchester's universities have a strong international reputation for excellence 
and attract significant numbers of international undergraduates and 
postgraduate students each year. This has contributed to Manchester’s 
reputation as a young, international, cosmopolitan, and welcoming and city 
and has played a significant role in institutional funding contributing to the 
breadth of curriculum offer for home students and the research and innovation 
capacity. 

 
4.0 The impact of COVID-19 on the higher education sector 
 
4.1 The impact of COVID-19 on young people in education and the labour market 

has been well documented. Levels of educational participation and 
achievement were significantly affected by family circumstances, particularly in 
relation to digital exclusion with young people from more deprived background 
more likely to have been more adversely impacted. 

 
4.2 The impact upon students' mental health has also been an area of significant 

concern particularly for young people from lower socio-economic 
backgrounds. With high levels of family and child poverty in the city, this is 
likely to have a long-term impact on educational, employment and wider life 
outcomes for many of the city’s young people. The post-16 and post-18 
sectors worked collaboratively with the Council and wider health providers and 
partners to provide targeted support to young people where possible. In 
addition, there was increased collaboration across the HE sector and 
partnership working with the Council. For example, the Work and Skills 
Bulletin was made available to careers services at HEIs across the city. HEIs, 
and the wider education sector, ensured a flexible careers service was 
available to 2020 graduates as they navigated entry to the labour market in 
the pandemic. 

 
4.3 The changes in the education sector throughout the pandemic have altered 

the student experience with opportunities for new social and life experiences 
reducing significantly, meaning that for many students the opportunity to 
increase human and social capital throughout FE and HE study has been 
decreased or at worst removed. Again, this has a greater impact on students 
from lower socio-economic backgrounds. The true impact of this is 
unquantifiable yet likely to be long lasting in terms of educational attainment, 
career prospects and earning potential. 

 
4.4 FE institutions and universities report that COVID-19 restrictions impacted 

quickly and significantly upon student educational and work-based learning 
opportunities, both paid and voluntary, due to businesses models being 
adapted and as some industries focused on survival. The sectoral impact on 
hospitality, leisure and culture also reduced the ability of students to gain part 
time employment, many students rely on this employment and income to 
financially support their higher education study. This lack of casual 
employment opportunities has also impacted on core social and employability 
skills developed in the workplace that graduates can call upon to support their 
transition into full-time employment post-graduation. Conversely, since the 
opening up of the economy, the hospitality industry is reporting substantial 

Page 36

Item 7



levels of unfilled roles as the impact of Brexit on the labour market come to the 
fore. 

 
4.5 Evidence from the 2008 recession shows a scarring effect of recession on 

young people. Resolution Foundation research2 shows that, for several years 
after having left education, employment rates across the cohorts that left 
education during the 2008 financial crisis were lower than for those who left 
education before or after the crisis. Whilst non-graduates experience the 
largest and longest scarring effects, graduate ‘recession leavers’ also 
experienced substantial effects, with a higher likelihood of underemployment 
rates as opposed to being out of work altogether. Resolution Foundation 
evidence also showed that for several years, both graduates and non-
graduates, had lower hourly pay than their counterparts who left education 
after the recession. The medium to long term impact on Manchester’s labour 
market remains unknown. Recovery from COVID-19 will be unique in 
comparison to previous recessions, with predictions shifting throughout 2020 
and 2021 in line with the varying restrictions on education and the wider 
economy. 

 
5.0  A Level results  
 
5.1 Education closures in the academic years 2019/2020 and 2020/2021 led to a 

shift in examination assessments to Teacher Assessed Grades. Nationally, 
concerns were raised over the system designed to reward performance as 
opposed to potential. Following the publication of A Level grades in 2021, The 
Social Mobility Commission (SMC) State of the Nation Report published in 
2021 stressed that the gap between economically disadvantaged and their 
more affluent peers had widened. The SMC stated that the system of Teacher 
Assessed Grades does not mitigate against the hardest hit and made it 
inevitable that the gap between the most disadvantaged students and their 
peers would widen. At the same time as the gap widening, there was an 
increase in top grades being awarded, seen disproportionately in the most 
privileged schools which could run the risk of crowding deserving students out 
of top universities. There are also regional differences in A-Level results that 
mirror some of the differential impacts of coronavirus and disadvantage. The 
system did not allow flexibility for the small minority of heavily affected young 
people, resulting in long-term and deep-rooted widening of inequality in 
educational attainment that correlates to employment outcomes. 

 
5.2 Despite this, Manchester’s overall post 16 performance remained strong. 

Manchester’s 2021 A Level breakdown by institution is not yet available for 
publication but shows that results have remained comparable to previous 
years despite the changes to the assessment system. The Council’s State of 
the City Report 20203 shows that A Level entries in Manchester has risen from 
5,935 in 2011/2012 to 8,310 in 2018/19. It also shows that results at grades 
A*- E have remained stable and in line with rates across England: in 
Manchester 98.9% achieved A*- E grades in 2011/2012, this fluctuates slightly 

                                            
2 https://www.resolutionfoundation.org/publications/class-of-2020 
3 
file://mcc.local/users$/002/turnerli/Downloads/sotc2020_chapter3_a_highly_skilled_city_web__1_.pdf 

Page 37

Item 7



across the years to 97.4% in 2018/2019 and compares with English results of 
98.6% in 2011/2012 and 97.3% in 2018/2019. 

 
5.3 Higher education admissions 
 
5.4 Despite initial concerns about transition to higher education arising from 

closures in education in March 2020, UCAS applications for September 2020 
starts reached a record high nationally and as a result, admissions were 
strong nationally. 2020/2021 UoM admissions are outlined in section nine of 
this report. However, an increase in deferral rates was also evident as some 
students chose to sit out the worst of COVID-19 restrictions, changes to 
students experience and online learning not withstanding young people and 
families who had been adversely affected by the pandemic. Intelligence from 
Manchester’s HE sector indicates some emerging trends in course selection 
and student demographics including an increase in demand and applications 
to health and care courses.   

 
5.5 The increase in applications and admissions for HE study seen in 2020/2021 

appears to have continued. Official admissions data for the academic year 
2021/2022 is not yet published but the sector reports that planned numbers 
were met with increases in home undergraduate students. Sectoral indications 
based on 2022 application data also show strong levels of applications to HEIs 
in the city suggest that applications for 2022/2023 admission have increased 
again. This could be attributed to perceived adverse labour market issues 
brought about by COVID-19, as higher education becomes an attractive option 
to a higher than average number of young people as they attempt to ride out 
the worst of the economic  downturn. A decrease in apprenticeship 
opportunities for school leavers has also impacted upon HE participation 
rates. HEIs, Higher Education Statistics Agency (HESA) and other relevant 
government departments, will be monitoring this emerging situation closely in 
order to respond to any long-term  changes in HE student numbers emerging 
from the pandemic.   

 
6.0 Higher Education attainment 
 
6.1 As evidenced in this report with HESA and institutional data analysis, the 

outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic did not have any notable impact on 
student enrolment figures for 2019/20 but did have an impact on qualifications 
awarded. Despite a growth in the overall number of first year students in 
preceding years, there was a decrease in the number of qualifications 
obtained nationally at all levels of HE study for the 2019/20 academic year. 
HESA suggest that some of this decrease can be explained by significant 
numbers of qualifications awarded this year not being reported, likely to be 
linked to the impact on examinations and awards resulting from the COVID-19 
pandemic. 

 
6.2 Degree Apprenticeships 
 
6.3 Degree level technical training opportunities and apprenticeships provide an 

alternative pathway to traditional higher education academic routes and 

Page 38

Item 7



promote inclusion. MMU’s high quality degree apprenticeship offer is 
highlighted in case study in the report Contribution of Higher Education 
Institutes to Manchester’s economy. presented to today’s committee. 
According Office for National Statistics data there have been some changes in 
degree level apprenticeships awards in the last two years. In 2019/2020 there 
were 241 which increased to 284 starts in 2020/2021 at Level 6 and 7. There 
are more higher-level apprentice learners in Manchester than any other GM 
borough. The age group with the highest number of higher-level 
apprenticeship achievements (Level 4-7) in Manchester in 2020/2021 was 25+ 
(130 residents). In 2019-2020, this number was just 61. The age group 19-24 
also followed this pattern of increases – in 2019/2020, there were 21 higher 
apprenticeship achievements, whilst in 2020/2021, there were 61 Collectively, 
Greater Manchester boroughs have seen a significant increase in the number 
of 25+ learners since 2019/20 - from 406 to 719. This could be a result of 
residents retraining due to COVID-19 related changes to in the labour market. 

 
7.0 Manchester’s higher education participation rates 
 
7.1 Ensuring equality of access to higher education via educational interventions 

is essential to extend economic opportunity to Manchester’s young people, 
residents and communities. In recent years, participation rates in higher 
education have continued to grow nationally and progress has been made in 
ensuring that some of Manchester’s most economically disadvantaged young 
people access the city's world-class HE offer. A number of widening 
participation initiatives at HEIs have supported the widening participation 
agenda. 

 
7.2  Greater Manchester Higher 
 

7.3 The Office for Students (OfS) Uni-connect programme supports post-16 
students through 29 local hub partnerships across England. The programme 
aims to increase the number of young people from underrepresented groups 
who progress to HE. The programme is currently funded until 2022. The 
services provide impartial advice and information nationally to 1,613 schools 
and colleges, reaching over 180,000 young people and their parents/carers. 
Each hub works with local universities and colleges to inspire young people 
with confidence to find an appropriate path to higher education. 

  
7.4 At a local level, Greater Manchester Higher (GMH) is led by MMU in 

partnership with regional FE and HE providers. GMH offer mentoring projects, 
summer schools, campus visits, curriculum activities, industry insight 
programmes, 1-2-1 Information Advice and Guidance sessions, HE workshops 
and presentations. Throughout the pandemic, the programme of activity was 
moved online and was able to continue to engage young people, although 
digital exclusion impacted upon participation. 

 
7.5 Since the start of the project in the academic year 2017/2018, Greater 

Manchester Higher has worked with 32 Manchester schools and colleges, with 
engagement numbers increasing year on year, notwithstanding a small 
decrease in 2029/2020 due to COVID-19 restrictions. Data provided by GMH 

Page 39

Item 7



shows that in 2017/2018, 4745 of Manchester’s learners were involved in the 
project, this had increased to 6509 in 2020/2021. To date, gender breakdown 
for participating learners in the academic 2020/2021 is 62% female and 38% 
male. 

 
7.6 First Generation project 
 
7.7 MMU has been running the First Generation Scholarship Programme since 

2017. The programme works with young people whose parents have no 
experience of higher education and supports students to maximise their 
potential and achieve their ambitions, reflecting the University’s commitment to 
addressing the attainment gap and HE access for under-represented groups.  
The programme delivers practical support and application guidance to Year 12 
and 13 students to help them access and transition to university. Participants 
who progress to MMU receive a bursary of £1000 in their first year, and 
continued support throughout their studies. In addition to providing a support 
network, mentorship and professional connections, the programme aims to 
give students self-belief, confidence and knowledge. 

  
7.8 First Generation aims to support 1,000 students into the University by 2025 

and has welcomed 426 students to date. Of these 426, 148 (38%) are from 
Manchester, the highest percentage from the surrounding boroughs.  The 
programme was initially aimed at students living or studying in Greater 
Manchester and has recently been extended to cover the Northwest as a 
whole. MMU evidence shows that students on the programme are progressing 
at higher rates when compared to other students.  The first students to join the 
programme finished their studies in 2021, therefore destination outcomes will 
be reported in HESA Graduate Outcomes becomes available for this cohort in 
2022. 

  
7.9 The First Generation project is an official referral partner to We Love 

Manchester’s Rising Stars Fund that aims to financially support talented young 
Mancunians to progress in education, employment or training where finances 
are a barrier to progression. To date, there have been six applications and 
three awards successfully granted. 

 
7.10  UoM widening participation  
 
7.11 Manchester University reports that it is in the top quintile of Russell Group 

Universities for the number of students from areas of low HE participation and 
low socio-economic groups and. The University also cite that they have one of 
the highest numbers of students from low-income households (less than 
£25,000) in the English Russell Group with approximately one third of all 
students receiving financial support through means tested bursaries. UOM’s 
Manchester Access Programme offer is highlighted in Contribution of Higher 
Education Institutes to Manchester’s economy. In addition, UoM has a 
significant commitment to racial equality in terms of: black students’ 
admissions, funding, attainment and learning experience; black staff 
recruitment, progression, pay and employment experience and how black lives 
are represented in the University’s history and heritage. 

Page 40

Item 7



8.0  Manchester's HE sectoral intelligence 
 
8.1 Manchester’s HE institutions attract different demographics. Most students 

studying at the University of Manchester come from outside the region, with 
only 27% from within the Northwest region. A considerable proportion of 
students studying at MMU originate from the Greater Manchester or Northwest 
region. In addition, MMU welcomes a substantial number of mature students. 
These differences in demographics affects how careers and graduate 
employment choices are made and the support provided by the institution e.g. 
UoM remains one of the most targeted HE institutions in the country, with 
large national and global corporations actively working with the careers 
service to attract their graduates. This leads to a level of mobility for this 
cohort. In contrast, significant numbers of MMU students have additional 
responsibilities such as caring responsibilities and related financial 
responsibilities. As a highly selective university, there is also a higher 
proportion of students from more affluent backgrounds at UoM, which has an 
impact upon their professional networks and related employment 
opportunities. Student population at UoM and MMU will be looked at detail in 
section 9 of this report and destination data in section 10. 

 
8.2 Royal Northern College of Music 
 
8.3 According to institutional data provided in October 20201, Royal Northern 

College of Music (RNCM) currently has 890 students studying across its 
portfolio of undergraduate and postgraduate (taught and research) 
programmes in music/popular music. RNCM has an outstanding world class 
reputation, and these students are recruited from 55 countries across the 
world: 625 of these are from the UK and 283 from the EU and other 
international countries. For the 2021/2022 academic year, a small number of 
students have requested to study online due to travel restrictions and related 
costs, however the vast majority of RNCM overseas students have arrived in 
Manchester to commence their studies in person. 

 
8.4 RNCM report that recruitment for 2021/22 entry has remained stable and 

broadly in line with previous years, although EU numbers have reduced by 
approximately 50% due to Brexit. Due to the specialist and intensive nature of 
conservatoire recruitment and training, RNCM do not provide places via the 
clearing process. The atypical financial model and estate constraints also 
present limitations in expanding overall student numbers at RNCM.  

 
8.5 As a specialist provider, graduation outcomes from RNCM are unique, RNCM 

report that their graduate destination survey outcomes over the last 3 years 
have recorded 100% of students progressing to further study or graduate 
careers paths within 6 months of graduation, with 87% or above working 
primarily in music. The pandemic, combined with Brexit, have had a 
significantly negative impact on the UK music industry and uncertainty around 
recovery remains. As such, an increase in post graduate study is anticipated 
by RNCA for 2021/2022. The sector remains hopeful that previous levels of 
employment will be recovered over the coming few years.  

 

Page 41

Item 7



8.6 As RNCM students were unable to pursue live ensemble activity throughout 
lockdown, students were supported to acquire a wide range of digital skills to 
create, capture and share work online in new and innovative ways. This has 
opened up new forms of employment for many, as students and graduates 
establish their own online businesses as artists, music educators, community 
musicians and artist managers working on the international stage. RNCM staff 
are positive about this development and the possibilities digital opportunities 
can bring for its graduate to support lifelong careers in music. 

 
8.7 UCEN  
 
8.8 UCEN Manchester is the HE arm of LTE The Manchester College and delivers 

a small volume of post-18 education with over 1,300 higher-education 
students enrolling every year since it officially launched as distinct from The 
Manchester College in January 2018. The role of FE higher education 
provision in reaching non-traditional academic students, and more 
economically disadvantaged students is an important part of developing a 
more inclusive education system, economy and place via an offer of 
Foundation Degrees and Higher National Diplomas on offer. UCEN 
Manchester report that approximately half their intake each year are on Level 
3 access to HE courses and the other half on 3-year undergraduate degrees. 
UCEN Manchester have a creative arts and performance specialism for 
undergraduate students and a more vocational offer for access students 
including computing, health and social care, sport and public services. 

 
8.9 UCEN Manchester has a high proportion of students recruited from low HE 

participation areas and students from low socio-economic backgrounds with 
any students receiving means-tested bursaries to support their study. In 
addition, the fees are lower than the full £9,250 charged by many HE 
providers at either £8,900 or £7,200 per year dependant on curriculum area.  

 
8.10  Graduate destinations at UCEN Manchester are unique in that many students 

progress onto further HE studies with the provider, and many progress to local 
institutions including MMU and University of Salford to continue with 
vocational courses such as Business and Nursing respectively. In addition, 
many students who have completed creative course move into free-lance 
employment in the creative and culture industries.  

 
8.11 Currently UCEN Manchester’s HE offer is spilt across 3 sites in Openshaw, 

Fielden and Nicholls. In September the facilities will be enhanced by the City 
Centre campus currently under construction at Ducie St and will include a 
dedicated HE centre. This resource is expected to increase the capacity of HE 
students. As a small provider, the student experience is different to at a large 
HE institution with significantly smaller class sizes and more bespoke student 
support. In 2021 UCEN Manchester won the Whatuni Student Choice Award 
for Best Student Support.  

 
 
 
 

Page 42

Item 7



9.0  Manchester’s HE student population 2016 –2020  
 
9.1 With the 18+ population set to rise nationally in the next decade, and the 

potential for increases in undergraduates and graduates in the city, there are 
considerations for the city, particularly neighbourhoods with increasing student 
populations, and for the business community. As such, ongoing collaboration 
with the HE sector will continue to be an important part of effective labour 
market recovery planning. 

 
9.2 HESA data analysis shows that Manchester’s student population in recent 

years has remained relatively stable. According to Office for National Statistics 
data for 2019/20, the overall number of students living in Manchester during 
term-time has remained stable with some marginal changes seen with some 
cohorts. The number of undergraduates decreased 2% year-on-year in 
2019/20, whilst the number of postgraduates living in Manchester grew by 6%. 
According to HESA, the number of postgraduates on taught courses grew by 
10% nationally between 2018/9 and 2019/20 largely due to an increase in 
enrolments from non-European Union (non-EU) students. 

 
9.3 The data in Table 1, 2 and 3 has been provided by the UoM’s data team and 

has been calculated on the annual census date each year of 1st December. 
UoM is made of three faculty's: Faculty of Biology, Medicine and Health; 
Faculty of Humanities’ Faculty of Science and Engineering.3 The following 
table shows the split of students across each of the three schools and the 
schools within the faculty. The data refers to students based at the main 
campus and do not include students enrolled at the University’s International 
centres or distance learning students. 

 
9.4  Table 1 shows that in terms of student numbers, the Faculty of Humanities is 

consistently the largest school. Table 1 shows the split of students by faculty 
and total numbers by year. 

 
Table 1 

Year of Study Faculty of 
Biology, 
Medicine & 
Health 

Faculty of  
Humanities 

Faculty of 
Science& Engineering 

2016/2017 11,270 17,255 12,165 

2017/2018 11,460 16,635 12,155 

2018/2019 11,505 16,570 12,150 

2019/2020 11,715 16,970 11,975 

2020/2021 12,240 19,465 12,650 

 
9.5 Table 2 shows that the biggest change in home student numbers in the last 5 

years has been during the pandemic. The largest gender difference is also 
recorded for the academic year 2020/2021 with totals numbers currently 
showing 24, 975 female students compared to 19,380 male students. This 
compares with 21,765 female and 18,925 for academic year 2016/17. School 
of Engineering is the only faculty where male student numbers are 
consistently higher than female students. Table 2 shows that the number of 

Page 43

Item 7



EU and international students has risen year on year since 2016/17, with the 
largest increase arising during the pandemic. The data evidences that 
international students' enrolments also remained strong and increased as per 
the previous trend in 2020 and 2021. The largest proportion of international 
students are undertaking courses with the Faculty of Humanities. 

 
Table 2 

Year of Study Home (UK) 
Students 

EU Students International 
Students 

2016/2017 26,615 2,710 11,365 

2017/2018 25,855 2,880 11,515 

2018/2019 25,100 3,035 12,085 

2019/2020 24,575 3,115 12,965 

2020/2021 26,260 3,220 14,880 

 
9.6 Table 3 shows the breakdown of new entrants by level of study studying at 

UoM throughout the last 5 academic years. The table shows that 
undergraduates are the largest group, closely followed by students 
undertaking taught post graduate courses. The largest jump seen throughout 
the pandemic was to undergraduate students with students on postgraduate 
and post graduate research courses remaining comparable to the previous 5 
years. 

 
Table 3 

Year of Study Undergraduate Post Graduate 
(Taught e.g. 
Masters) 

Post Graduate  
(Research e.g. 
PhD) 

2016/2017 8,535 7,380 1,150 

2017/2018 8,150 7,065 1,325 

2018/2019 8,100 7,710 1,255 

2019/2020 8,425 8,375 1,195 

2020/2021 10,005 9,770 1,050 

Source HESA 
 
9.7 HESA data shows that at both MMU and UoM, the number of female students 

has been higher than the number of male students. At MMU in the academic 
year 2015-2016, there were 18,890 female students and 13,600 male 
students. By 2019-2020 there were 19,470 female students and 13,940 male 
students. At UoM in the academic year 2015-2016, there were 21,020 female 
students and 18,685 male students. By 2019-2020 there were 22,350 female 
students and 18,135 male students.  

 
9.8 MMU’s student numbers has marginally in the academic years 2016/2017 - 

2019/2010. Table 4 shows a breakdown of students by domicile and highlights 
that MMU recruits predominantly from the UK. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 44

Item 7



Table 4 

Year of Study Home (UK) 
Students 

Non-UK 
Students 

Total Number of  
Students 

2016/2017 30,620 2,390 33,010 

2017/2018 30,615 2,470 33,080 

2018/2019 30,450 2,600 33,050 

2019/2020 30,670 2,750 33,420 

Source HESA 
 
9.9 Table 5 shows the breakdown of MMU students by level of study and 

highlights the differences in numbers of UG and PGs students between MMU 
and UoM, with MMU significantly higher numbers of UG students and 
significantly less students studying for postgraduate qualifications.  

 
Table 5 

Year of Study Undergraduate 
 

Post Graduate 
(Taught e.g. 

Masters) 

Post Graduate 
(Research e.g. 

PhD) 

2016/2017 26,775 5,540 695 

2017/2018 26,605 5,710 765 

2018/2019 26,315 5,980 755 

2019/2020 26,435 6,295 690 

Source HESA 
 
10.0 Graduate Destinations 
 
10.1 The Office for National Statistics defines graduate employment as those 

occupations that normally require knowledge and skills developed on a three-
year university degree to enable the competent performance of tasks. The 
definition of a graduate role is likely to change as industries develop and 
employers work to meet the skills demand of their changing workforce. For 
example, many highly skilled sectors and jobs are diversifying their routes into 
employment by offering higher and degree level apprenticeships or even 
graduate apprenticeships. As such, the pathways into graduate employment 
are becoming increasingly varied. 

 
10.2 The graduate talent pipeline in the city falls into four broad categories: 
 

1. Manchester, or Greater Manchester, students who remain in the city to 
study and remain to enter the labour market post-graduation.  

2. Students from Manchester who study outside of the city and return post-
graduation. 

3. Students who come to Manchester from other areas who remain post-
graduation. 

4. Graduates who have not studied in Manchester but move here post-
graduation, attracted by the employment opportunities and city offer. 

 
10.3 Graduates, and employees more widely, now have more flexibility with the 

potential to work remotely from other locations and/or for businesses based 
outside of Manchester. These changes also bring increased competition from 

Page 45

Item 7



graduates from other universities. Despite this, Manchester’s city centre 
housing, leisure, culture, and sporting offers remain attractive options for 
young people leaving university in the city and beyond. The true impact of the 
shift to hybrid and remote working on graduate retention and employment in 
the city remains to be seen and may require new approaches to talent 
attraction and development by employers. 

 
10.4 The HESA Graduate Outcome survey now focuses on the work location of 

graduates 15 months after graduating, prior to 2019 this data was reported at 
6 months following graduation. As such data for 2020 graduate destinations 
will be publicly available in summer 2022. This increased data lag has 
presented a particular issue throughout the pandemic, in terms of having 
timely intelligence available to provide a localised response. Again, ongoing 
collaboration with the sector will support in providing data and intelligence to 
meet skills demands across the city.  

 
10.5  Local and regional HESA Graduate Destination data  
 
10.6 Taken from the HESA Graduate Outcomes Survey, Table 7 shows that the 

proportion of graduates indigenous to Manchester who entered work in the city 
within 15 months of graduating in 2018/19 academic year was 23%, with a 
further 13% working elsewhere in the Greater Manchester region.  This 
represents a slight increase on the previous year’s graduate cohort, when 
20% were working in the city 15 months after graduating. Relatively large 
proportions of graduates indigenous to Manchester also remain in the wider 
north west region outside of Manchester and Greater Manchester.  

 

Location of employment Academic year 
2017/18 

 
Academic year 

 2018/19 

Manchester 20% 23% 

Greater Manchester 
(excluding Manchester) 

13% 13% 

Greater Manchester 33% 36% 

North west (excluding 
Greater Manchester) 

32% 39% 

UK (excluding north west) 32% 22% 

Non-UK 3% 2% 

Source HESA 
  

 

10.7 Table 7 shows HESA data shows comparison to earlier years and evidences 
the increase in graduate retention in Manchester and the wider Greater 
Manchester and Northwest region as a whole in the years 2010 – 2016.  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 46

Item 7



 Year      

Location 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

Manchest
er 

27% 28% 41% 39% 40% 42% 

GM excl 
Ma
n 

45% 41% 31% 31% 32% 29% 

GM 72% 69% 72% 70% 71% 71% 

NW excl 
G
M 

7% 8% 7% 7% 8% 9% 

UK excl 
N
W 

18% 21% 19% 20% 18% 18% 

Non-UK 2% 2% 2% 3% 3% 2% 

Source HESA 
 
10.8 This increase in graduate attraction, retention and therefore skills and talent in 

Manchester has driven growth in the city’s population, as graduates are 
attracted by the educational, employment, cultural, and sporting offer. Pre 
COVID-19 projection figures estimated that city centre living would reach 
100,000 by 2025 representing a seismic shift in the last 20 years. In turn, this 
population growth has stimulated further growth in key sectors and 
development in new and emerging alternative sectors. In 2020, HEIs were 
reporting significant disruption to labour market offers for their 2020 leavers. 
However, indications now show that the graduate recruitment market is 
recovering to pre-pandemic levels.  

 
11.0 Manchester’s Graduate Labour Market  
 
11.1 Centre for Cities research 4shows that Manchester, and other UK Core Cities 

still experience the ‘brain drain’ and fall behind London for graduate, and 
highly skilled, talent retention and attraction. However, as an international city 
Manchester also benefits from the ‘brain gain’ experienced when highly skilled 
and professionals move to Manchester from international countries for 
employment opportunities.  

 
11.2 COVID-19 has had a significant impact on skills supply and demand and has 

brought some structural changes in the labour market and the speed of 
change has accelerated due to automation and digitalisation. Nationally the 
UK faces skills shortages that particularly impact upon higher skilled and 
technical roles. Despite the relatively high and increasing number of graduates 
in the city, the strong post-16 offer within the city and initiatives to address 
specific skills gaps this trend is replicated across the city. In addition, the 
speed of growth and diversification of Manchester’s economy has created 
challenges in meeting demand with the greatest impact felt in growth sectors 

                                            
4 https://www.centreforcities.org/reader/great-british-brain-drain 

Page 47

Item 7



and higher skilled occupations such as financial and professional, managerial 
and professional, digital and creative roles. The Council’s September 2021 
Economy Dashboard Data shows that in one week in July 2021, there were 
9,000 jobs posted across Greater Manchester, the highest number in 3 years.  
New HE provision can go some way to address the skills shortages in the 
city's growth sectors e.g., MMU School of Digital Art (SODA) opened for first 
cohort of HE students in September 2021, SODA also launched the UKs first 
Digital UX Degree Apprenticeship in September 2020. 

 
11.3 A widening of the travel to work area has brought greater labour market 

competition which has the potential to impact significantly upon the graduate 
talent pipeline in the city with graduates from further afield being able to more 
readily access the city's employment offer. With remote and hybrid models of 
working becoming more common place, graduates from universities in cities 
and regions, e.g. Chester, Staffordshire, West Yorkshire, with less graduate 
opportunities may have the ability to work for a Manchester based business. 
Conversely, this could increase the gap in resident and employee wages. 

 
11.4 Talent and diversity  
 
11.5 Despite ongoing work to improve diversity and inclusion, differentials between 

workforce make up in key and growth sectors continue particularly in the 
digital and construction and engineering sectors. The digital sector is 
expanding almost three times faster than the rest of the UK economy and it is 
estimated to be worth approx. £184bn. However, diversity remains a key 
challenge as only 15% of the tech workforce are from Black Asian Minority 
and Ethnic backgrounds and gender diversity is currently sitting at 19% 
compared to 49% in other sectors. The benefits of diversity can only be 
achieved when work environments are inclusive. Research undertaken by 
Leeds Racial Diversity in Digital highlights3 that ethnically diverse, inclusive  

 
CASE STUDY: The Hut Group  
 
Since 2018 the Work and Skills team has worked closely with The Hut Group 
(THG) to support the development of their Airport City sites, which includes a 
commitment to recruiting graduate talent in Manchester. In 2020 THG set a 
target to recruit 600 graduates by 2022.  Working with THG to forge and build 
relationships with universities, in addition to supporting the promotion of 
opportunities available within Airport City has enabled THG to recruit just 
under 500 graduates by June 2021. The majority of these graduates originate 
from Manchester. The graduates are working across a range of areas within 
THG, from digital and creative, to HR, leadership and multi-lingual roles. Work 
continues with THG to forward plan for graduate recruitment as their flagship 
THQ and Icon sites develop over the coming years. 

 
12.0 Overview of specific initiatives 
 
12.1 The Council’s Work and Skills Team works with employers and businesses 

across the city to support a needs led response to skills supply and demand 
issues, with some initiatives designed to support the graduate market 

Page 48

Item 7



specifically. As the graduate talent pipeline makes a significant contribution to 
supporting skills demand and will play an integral part of the city’s economic 
recovery, throughout COVID-19 response and recovery planning, there has 
been an increased focus on supporting the graduate labour market. 

 
12.2 Graduates for Greater Manchester 
 
12.3 Findings in the 2021 CBI 2021 Skills Survey 5 highlights that developing 

workforce industry-specific technical knowledge (60%), leadership & 
management (58%) and advanced digital skills (44%) are top priorities for 
businesses. This builds on business intelligence over a number of years with 
employers are reporting that analytical, negotiation, critical thinking and 
interpersonal skills are becoming more important for their business and that 
they can struggle to find candidates with these skills. The OfS funded initiative 
Graduates for Greater Manchester was established at UoM and MMU to 
upskill undergraduates from degree disciplines with higher levels of 
underemployment and to support them to consider and develop skills required 
in large and growth sectors.  

  
12.4 An evaluation of the programme carried out by the MMU’s Decent Work and 

Productivity Centre has shown that: students reported considerable 
improvements in their feelings of career self-efficacy; students reported 
improvements in specific digital skills and growing confidence and awareness, 
more digitally oriented students found the projects to be a valuable stepping 
stone in building their skill set and stimulating further interest in training and 
development.  

 
12.5 Our Manchester Graduate Scheme  
 
12.6 The Our Manchester Graduate Scheme is a pilot collaborative initiative 

between the Council and MMU aiming to connect small and medium-sized 
enterprises (SMEs) to recent graduates. The businesses will be supported 
with funding, candidate attraction, recruitment, and selection carried out by 
MMU. The business will offer a 12-month graduate opportunity with the 
potential for the role to become permanent. Upon starting in the role, the 
graduate will have access to regular CPD (Continuing Professional 
Development) training provided by the council’s HR department. The scheme 
launched in August 2021 and is currently at the stage of recruiting businesses 
with nine SMEs interested to date. 

 
13.0  Next Steps 
 
13.1 The Work and Skills Strategy 2016-2021 is currently being refreshed. One of 

the previous Strategy's objectives was retaining graduates in the city. This 
supports the Our Manchester Strategy –Forward to 2025 priorities of creating 
‘a highly skilled city’ and of ‘home-grown talent sustaining the city’s economic 
success.’ The refreshed strategy, due to be published in 2022, will build on the 
success of the previous strategy whilst considering the strategic and policy 

                                            
5 https://www.cbi.org.uk/articles/skills-for-an-inclusive-economy-cbibirkbeck-education-and-skills-
survey-2021 

Page 49

Item 7



contexts including the impacts of COVID-19, Brexit and the ensuing structural 
changes in the economy. Engagement with undergraduate and post graduate 
student, recent graduates and HE staff will form an integral part of the 
Strategy refresh process and can be supported by improved partnerships with 
HEIs fostered throughout COVID-19 response and economic recovery 
planning. Building upon the opportunities presented by the pandemic with 
continued collaboration at a local level, and increased data and intelligence 
sharing capability will be critical to support supply and demand issues in the 
graduate and wider labour market. 

 
13.2 Continued development, regeneration and economic diversification are critical 

to achieving a thriving, sustainable and inclusive economy and will be 
increasingly important in the recovery from COVID-19. Achieving our equality 
inclusive economy aims will only be possible with the continued support of 
HEIs and businesses to recognise and value diversity and nature potential and 
talent, recognising that some students and early career employees will need 
additional support. The challenge facing Manchester, its HEIs and its 
businesses will be to respond to new patterns of study and work and ensure 
that the city remains competitive and attractive to prospective businesses, 
students, and graduates alike. The challenge and opportunity for the 
education and training system will also be in responding at pace and scale to 
opportunities presented by the emerging and growing sectors such as: zero 
carbon and greening of the economy; research and business; financial and 
professional services; creative and digital; cyber, fintech, bioscience; 
advanced material and research and development. 

 
13.3 Building upon the success of widening participation initiatives will be essential 

to ensure a pipeline of home-grown talent and that Manchester’s young 
people have attractive and accessible routes to HE and high-quality technical 
pathways, including financial, pastoral and careers support when it is needed. 
Equity for the city’s more deprived young people and parity between academic 
and technical pathways will be essential to nurture home grown talent, work 
towards a more inclusive economy, and in meeting the skills needs of 
businesses in coming years. 

 
14.0 Conclusion 
 
14.1 The HE response to COVID-19 and resilience shown across the HEIs has 

ensured that Manchester remains a university city of choice Manchester 
remains an attractive city for undergraduate, graduates and post-graduate 
students due to the renowned and outstanding education and world class 
opportunities available to students, and the wider city offer. This reputation for 
excellence is bolstered by the global reputation and the international student 
body that come to study, live and work in the city. The strength, resilience and 
diverse labour market has also ensured that talent remains in the city and city 
region, and that graduates from institutions from outside the city, and city 
region are attracted to Manchester as a viable alternative to London.  

Page 50

Item 7



Manchester City Council 
Report for Information 

 
Report to: Economy Scrutiny Committee – 11 November 2021 
 
Subject: Update on COVID-19 Activity  
 
Report of: Director of City Centre Growth and Infrastructure and Director of 

Inclusive Economy 
 

 
Summary 
 
This report provides Committee Members with a further update summary of the current 
situation in the city in relation to COVID-19 and an update on the work progressing in 
Manchester in relation to areas within the remit of this Committee.  Further detail on 
specific issues will be available as required. 
 
Recommendations 
 
The Committee is requested to note the update. 
 

 
Wards Affected: All  
 

Environmental Impact Assessment - the impact of the issues addressed in this 
report on achieving the zero-carbon target for the city 

 

 

Manchester Strategy Outcomes Summary of how this report aligns to the OMS 

A thriving and sustainable city: 
supporting a diverse and distinctive 
economy that creates jobs and 
opportunities 

This unprecedented national and international 
crisis impacts on all areas of our city. The ‘Our 
Manchester’ approach has underpinned the 
planning and delivery of our response, working in 
partnership and identifying innovative ways to 
continue to deliver services and to establish new 
services as quickly as possible to support the most 
vulnerable in our city. 
 
A reset of the Our Manchester Strategy is now 
underway following a meeting of the Our 

A highly skilled city: world class 
and home grown talent sustaining 
the city’s economic success 

Page 51

Item 8



A progressive and equitable city: 
making a positive contribution by 
unlocking the potential of our 
communities 

Manchester Forum on 16 June 2020. An extensive 
engagement exercise will take place to inform a 
draft document in late 2020 and a final version in 
February 2021.  
  

A liveable and low carbon city: a 
destination of choice to live, visit, 
work 

A connected city: world class 
infrastructure and connectivity to 
drive growth 

 
Contact Officers: 
 
Name: Pat Bartoli  
Position: Director of City Centre Growth and Infrastructure  
Telephone: 0161 234 3329 
Email: pat.bartoli@manchester.gov.uk 
 
Name: Angela Harrington 
Position: Director of Inclusive Economy 
Telephone: 0161 234 3171 
Email: angela.harrington@manchester.gov.uk 
 
Name: Hilary Sayers 
Position: City Centre Growth Manager 
Telephone: 0161 234 3387 
Email: hilary.sayers@manchester.gov.uk 
 
Background documents (available for public inspection): 
 
None 

 

Page 52

Item 8



  

Economic Recovery Workstream- Sitrep Summary 

As at 28/10/2021 for meeting on 29/10/2021. Updated fortnightly. Latest updates shown in yellow.     

 

Issue/theme/activity 

area 
Impact/ challenges experienced Key planning and response activity being undertaken 

General Overview 

 

ONS National Indicators 21st October 

 The total volume of online job adverts on 

15 October 2021 grew by 2% from the 

previous week, to 143% of its February 

2020 average level; the "transport, logistics 

and warehouse" category is now more 

than four times as high as its February 

2020 average level (Adzuna). 

 Transactions at Pret A Manger stores 

increased in all regions and transport 

locations except Manchester and Scotland 

in the week to 14 October 2021 (Pret A 

Manger). 

 The system average price (SAP) of gas 

decreased by 6% in the week to 17 

October 2021; this was the first weekly fall 

in 13 weeks (National Grid). 

 Almost one in six businesses (16%) intend 

to use increased homeworking as a 

permanent business model going forward, 

with the main reasons for this being 

improved staff well-being, reduced 

overheads and increased productivity 

(Business Insights and Conditions Survey 

(BICS)).The surveyed businesses ranged 

from SME to larger businesses and was a 

representative sample.  

Powering Recovery: Manchester’s Recovery and Investment 

Plan’ launched in Nov. Four investment priorities around: 

innovation; city centre and urban realm; residential retrofit 

programme; and North Manchester regeneration. Seeking govt 

funding for over 50 projects of £798.8 m. The plan can be 

accessed here. 

United City business-led campaign launched 22/11 and 

supported by MCC.  

Business Sounding Board and Real Estate subgroup continue 

to meet regularly to share intel across sectors and to help support 

MCC lobbying.   

Weekly MCC newsletter issued to over 9,000 businesses with 

updates. 

Comms update 

 

Link to the film: Manchester is back. Stronger than ever. - 

YouTube 

The film performed most well on Twitter with over 100k 

impressions, 13k view of the video and over 300 likes. Our Twitter 

followers tend to include partners and well as residents and 

businesses. It also did well on LinkedIn with 7k views and 367 

likes.  

P
age 53

Item
 8

http://www.manchester.gov.uk/poweringrecovery
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.youtube.com%2Fwatch%3Fv%3DbEyg0aRUBE4&data=04%7C01%7Crhiannon.monaghan%40manchester.gov.uk%7Ca16aee9ba14b474af5c808d92061d860%7Cb0ce7d5e81cd47fb94f7276c626b7b09%7C0%7C0%7C637576426882578516%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=kXAg1ajDZ5DNQD7i5jnWmddrfjIAbGt4D8emLOzhhX8%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.youtube.com%2Fwatch%3Fv%3DbEyg0aRUBE4&data=04%7C01%7Crhiannon.monaghan%40manchester.gov.uk%7Ca16aee9ba14b474af5c808d92061d860%7Cb0ce7d5e81cd47fb94f7276c626b7b09%7C0%7C0%7C637576426882578516%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=kXAg1ajDZ5DNQD7i5jnWmddrfjIAbGt4D8emLOzhhX8%3D&reserved=0


 The seven-day average estimate of UK 

seated diners in the week to 18 October 

2021 was 119% of the level in the 

equivalent week of 2019; the 

corresponding figure for Manchester and 

London were 121% and 86%, respectively 

(OpenTable). 

 The seven-day average number of UK 

daily flights was 3,625 in the week ending 

17 October 2021, this was 59% of the level 

seen in the equivalent week of 2019; the 

highest this figure has been since the first 

UK wide lockdown (EUROCONTROL). 

 

Government unveils net zero plan (19 October): 

the Government has published its long-awaited Net 

Zero Strategy, alongside the Heat and Buildings 

Strategy, with its commitment to ban the sale of 

new petrol and diesel cars and vans by 2030, 

decarbonising the electricity supply, investment in 

hydrogen production, aim to have 10% sustainable 

aviation fuel by 2030, £2bn investment to help half 

of journeys in towns and cities to be cycled or 

walked by 2030, and grants for upgrade gas 

boilers to heat pumps.  

Roadmap for green financial systems (18 

October): the Chancellor has unveiled a roadmap 

for the Government’s ambitions to green the 

financial system. It introduced Sustainability 

Disclosure Requirements which would mean that 

every investment product would have to set out the 

environmental impact of the activities it finances 

and justify clearly any sustainability claims it 

The Welcome Back campaign moved into the next phase of 

lockdown messaging from the 17th May with emphasis on culture 

venues opening back up. We produced another film with the 

Contact Theatre on what opening up meant to them and how 

important it is to support our cultural venues. Manchester art & 

entertainment venues are opening 🎭 #WelcomeBackMCR - 

YouTube 

Alongside this, visitors to the city will see a raft of Welcome Back 

messaging from outdoor digital advertising, poster sites, shop 

windows and in taxis to name a few.  

The weekly Welcome Back ebulletin signposts to the events 

taking place, such as the flower show, along side key advice to 

ask that people continue to follow the advice and guidance so we 

can all return safely.  

Re-opening update  

c. 400 licences have been issued to the hospitality sector. Overall 

businesses have responded to all requirements positively, have 

engaged with authorities and are overwhelmingly compliant. 

However the impact does continue to be significant for them. The 

delayed lifting only delays their recovery and makes for continued 

higher operational costs. More widely than that because as a 

sector they are required to record customer contacts in a way that 

other sectors are not required to (retail/transport for example), 

they are harder hit when an individual tests positive – and 

isolations/temporary closures are required that are not mirrored in 

the retail sector.  

There has been a shift in employment within the sector  as 

already reported, with many leaving it altogether and there is a 

real shortage of staff at the minute that is compounding all the 

aforementioned issues meaning some businesses also have to 

shut due to staff shortages. 

 

P
age 54

Item
 8

https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gov.uk%2Fgovernment%2Fpublications%2Fnet-zero-strategy&data=04%7C01%7Crhiannon.monaghan%40manchester.gov.uk%7Cbef609c9357446bf18fc08d993a219ab%7Cb0ce7d5e81cd47fb94f7276c626b7b09%7C0%7C0%7C637703146688815010%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=LwWofQ4tG39bL9Aee4zmNaHWSJEwE%2Fojo2F%2F9PGjwxg%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gov.uk%2Fgovernment%2Fpublications%2Fnet-zero-strategy&data=04%7C01%7Crhiannon.monaghan%40manchester.gov.uk%7Cbef609c9357446bf18fc08d993a219ab%7Cb0ce7d5e81cd47fb94f7276c626b7b09%7C0%7C0%7C637703146688815010%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=LwWofQ4tG39bL9Aee4zmNaHWSJEwE%2Fojo2F%2F9PGjwxg%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gov.uk%2Fgovernment%2Fpublications%2Fheat-and-buildings-strategy&data=04%7C01%7Crhiannon.monaghan%40manchester.gov.uk%7Cbef609c9357446bf18fc08d993a219ab%7Cb0ce7d5e81cd47fb94f7276c626b7b09%7C0%7C0%7C637703146688824941%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=Lsir34DyeNepmD3QS5zwhkKz6pJZUNNJ%2BOf7N9oa3eM%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gov.uk%2Fgovernment%2Fpublications%2Fheat-and-buildings-strategy&data=04%7C01%7Crhiannon.monaghan%40manchester.gov.uk%7Cbef609c9357446bf18fc08d993a219ab%7Cb0ce7d5e81cd47fb94f7276c626b7b09%7C0%7C0%7C637703146688824941%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=Lsir34DyeNepmD3QS5zwhkKz6pJZUNNJ%2BOf7N9oa3eM%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.youtube.com%2Fwatch%3Fv%3DxkBH-8x2e3Q&data=04%7C01%7Crhiannon.monaghan%40manchester.gov.uk%7Ca16aee9ba14b474af5c808d92061d860%7Cb0ce7d5e81cd47fb94f7276c626b7b09%7C0%7C0%7C637576426882588485%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=wMNhMB8CZjtxrAt0zQhszBsN94wOiOvBBRy8nKipg5I%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.youtube.com%2Fwatch%3Fv%3DxkBH-8x2e3Q&data=04%7C01%7Crhiannon.monaghan%40manchester.gov.uk%7Ca16aee9ba14b474af5c808d92061d860%7Cb0ce7d5e81cd47fb94f7276c626b7b09%7C0%7C0%7C637576426882588485%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=wMNhMB8CZjtxrAt0zQhszBsN94wOiOvBBRy8nKipg5I%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.youtube.com%2Fwatch%3Fv%3DxkBH-8x2e3Q&data=04%7C01%7Crhiannon.monaghan%40manchester.gov.uk%7Ca16aee9ba14b474af5c808d92061d860%7Cb0ce7d5e81cd47fb94f7276c626b7b09%7C0%7C0%7C637576426882588485%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=wMNhMB8CZjtxrAt0zQhszBsN94wOiOvBBRy8nKipg5I%3D&reserved=0


makes. The Greening Finance: A Roadmap to 

Sustainable Investing is available to read.  

Inflation dips slightly: latest ONS data has shown 

that inflation was at 3.1% for September, down on 

3.2% in August. The ONS said that this was 

because prices in restaurants rose less in August 

than last year when the Eat Out to Help Out 

scheme was operating. Industry is expecting 

further price increases due to rising energy costs, 

supply chain disruption and the withdrawal of VAT 

reductions for the hospitality industry.  

Consumer confidence down: the GfK Consumer 

Confidence survey has put consumer confidence in 

the UK at -17 for October, down four points on 

September. The survey found that households 

were less optimistic about their personal finances 

over the next year and were less likely to make any 

big purchases. 

Impact of VAT rise: a VAT Survey undertaken by 

the Tourism Alliance, UKHospitality, BBPA and 

Alva, shows that the current temporary reduced 

rate of VAT of 12.5% is a lifeline to many tourism 

and hospitality businesses, with funding being 

spent on keeping businesses afloat, complying 

with Covid requirements, and paying staff and 

suppliers. The findings show that reverting the VAT 

level to 20% could have serious consequences for 

businesses, with 4 in 10 saying it would likely lead 

to cutbacks and job losses 

Manchester office deals continue: the 

Manchester Office Agents Forum report that Q3 

figures are significantly better for 2021 than they 

were for the same period in 2020. A total of 

257,164sqft was transacted from July to 

September 2021, which is also 17% more than the 

19th July- Several city centre nightclubs did a NYE’s style 

countdown and one venue had a full capacity ticketed queue of 

800. Most nightclubs operating a tickets only entry.Of the 650 

hospitality venues, almost all will be open by the coming week 

end ( only 6% were not operating in some form). Many night time 

venues had reinvented themselves during the pandemic to allow 

trading to continue and are now reverting back or upgrading to 

previous operating patterns. 

Prior to stage 4, additional opening and operating safely guidance 

has been issued to businesses and venues including for 

nightclubs and for weddings and funerals. Bulletins continue to 

encourage staff vaccination and regular use of Lateral Flow Tests 

with comms that protecting staff protects the business. The 

Licensing and Out of Hours Team is visiting all nightclub premises 

and engaging re risk assessments and now working until 

04.30hrs; officers are also monitoring re noise levels ( particularly 

with current ventilation advice) and waste from external 

operations. ‘Pinging’ is having impact on hospitality staff and on 

waste and cleansing staff availability. 

14 September – temporary licences enabling use of outside 

space by hospitality will not be renewed in most cases over the 

winter. This will give the opportunity to look long term at use of 

space. Where licences are part of already approved schemes, 

these will continue. Comms going out this week. 

24 September – Christmas markets will return to the city centre 

for 2021. Piccadilly Gardens will be the site for an expanded 

‘winter gardens’ featuring market stalls, lighting, food and drink, 

seating areas and entertainment space.  

12th October – security measures around the temporary outside 

space for hospitality will be removed 18/19th October. 

Consideration is being given to longer term options taking into 

account needs of all parties including residents and neighbouring 

businesses together with the city’s overall objective to increase 

space available to pedestrians. 

P
age 55

Item
 8

https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gov.uk%2Fgovernment%2Fpublications%2Fgreening-finance-a-roadmap-to-sustainable-investing&data=04%7C01%7Crhiannon.monaghan%40manchester.gov.uk%7Cbef609c9357446bf18fc08d993a219ab%7Cb0ce7d5e81cd47fb94f7276c626b7b09%7C0%7C0%7C637703146688834901%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=dwaMjewl3vVntSFDv5rS3AGXAxPUsJqSM0wq8rg80gk%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gov.uk%2Fgovernment%2Fpublications%2Fgreening-finance-a-roadmap-to-sustainable-investing&data=04%7C01%7Crhiannon.monaghan%40manchester.gov.uk%7Cbef609c9357446bf18fc08d993a219ab%7Cb0ce7d5e81cd47fb94f7276c626b7b09%7C0%7C0%7C637703146688834901%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=dwaMjewl3vVntSFDv5rS3AGXAxPUsJqSM0wq8rg80gk%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ons.gov.uk%2Freleases%2Fconsumerpriceinflationukseptember2021&data=04%7C01%7Crhiannon.monaghan%40manchester.gov.uk%7Cbef609c9357446bf18fc08d993a219ab%7Cb0ce7d5e81cd47fb94f7276c626b7b09%7C0%7C0%7C637703146688834901%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=UqTGzrW9mIhxP%2BFHSLqJB0TMcrovVJH8LYO5U8Kialc%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ons.gov.uk%2Freleases%2Fconsumerpriceinflationukseptember2021&data=04%7C01%7Crhiannon.monaghan%40manchester.gov.uk%7Cbef609c9357446bf18fc08d993a219ab%7Cb0ce7d5e81cd47fb94f7276c626b7b09%7C0%7C0%7C637703146688834901%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=UqTGzrW9mIhxP%2BFHSLqJB0TMcrovVJH8LYO5U8Kialc%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.retailgazette.co.uk%2Fblog%2F2021%2F10%2Fconsumer-confidence-drops-for-third-consecutive-month%2F&data=04%7C01%7Crhiannon.monaghan%40manchester.gov.uk%7Cfbe267e879b94383fb3408d99891fdec%7Cb0ce7d5e81cd47fb94f7276c626b7b09%7C0%7C0%7C637708575058650278%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=FWGi%2BPl%2BVPgq5lnHftT19jeyar9PiN8L2OVHmcOaPcc%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.retailgazette.co.uk%2Fblog%2F2021%2F10%2Fconsumer-confidence-drops-for-third-consecutive-month%2F&data=04%7C01%7Crhiannon.monaghan%40manchester.gov.uk%7Cfbe267e879b94383fb3408d99891fdec%7Cb0ce7d5e81cd47fb94f7276c626b7b09%7C0%7C0%7C637708575058650278%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=FWGi%2BPl%2BVPgq5lnHftT19jeyar9PiN8L2OVHmcOaPcc%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.tourismalliance.com%2Fdownloads%2FTA_415_445.pdf&data=04%7C01%7Crhiannon.monaghan%40manchester.gov.uk%7Cfbe267e879b94383fb3408d99891fdec%7Cb0ce7d5e81cd47fb94f7276c626b7b09%7C0%7C0%7C637708575058660241%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=HnRGIwHv0PbP4neSsFDy%2BL4Deq4s8Q0Rhw%2FWIy3TRcQ%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.tourismalliance.com%2Fdownloads%2FTA_415_445.pdf&data=04%7C01%7Crhiannon.monaghan%40manchester.gov.uk%7Cfbe267e879b94383fb3408d99891fdec%7Cb0ce7d5e81cd47fb94f7276c626b7b09%7C0%7C0%7C637708575058660241%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=HnRGIwHv0PbP4neSsFDy%2BL4Deq4s8Q0Rhw%2FWIy3TRcQ%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.placenorthwest.co.uk%2Fnews%2Fmoaf-manchester-office-take-up-heading-for-1m-sq-ft-for-the-year%2F%23utm_source%3DPlace%2BNorth%2BWest%26utm_campaign%3DPlace_Daily_Briefing__Tuesday__2021-10-19%26utm_medium%3Demail&data=04%7C01%7Crhiannon.monaghan%40manchester.gov.uk%7Cfbe267e879b94383fb3408d99891fdec%7Cb0ce7d5e81cd47fb94f7276c626b7b09%7C0%7C0%7C637708575058670201%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=uqNfFobKuwbWnO10DSFPH6FtcpytL1IQeR3MxKiEgNc%3D&reserved=0


deals done in Q2. The MOAF expects to see 

demand continue on this trajectory and for at least 

1million sqft transacted overall in 2021. Significant 

transactions include 87,130sqft taken by games 

developer Cloud Imperium Games at the 

Manchester Goods Yard, Accenture taking 

25,000sqft at Circle Square and Deliveroo taking 

10,000sqft at 5 New York Street  

Comprehensive 

Spending Review  

27.10.21 

Economic overview: 

 In September, inflation was at 3.1% and 

predicted to rise to 4% over the next year 

 The OBR predicts that growth will be at 

6.5% for this year and they then expect the 

economy to grow by 6% in 2022  

 The OBR predicted that unemployment 

would hit 12% but they have revised this to 

5.2% 

 Wages have risen, compared to February 

2020, in real terms by 3.5% 

 Borrowing as a percentage of GDP is 

expected to be 7.9% this year and then 

drop to 3.3% in 2022 and then 2.4% in 

2023 

Housing 

 £11.5billion for up to 180,000 affordable 

homes, targeted on brownfield sites 

 Residential Property Developers Tax, 

which I can confirm will be levied on 

developers with profits over £25m at a rate 

of 4% (which will fund removal of cladding 

from high-risk buildings) 

Levelling Up 

 

P
age 56

Item
 8



 First allocation for the Levelling Up Fund 

(winning projects have been announced) 

 First allocation for the Community 

Ownership Fund (none in Manchester) 

 £5.7billion for English city regions over five 

years for upgrades to transport networks to 

create London-style integrated settlements 

 £850million for museums, galleries, 

libraries, and local cultural venues  

 £2.6billion for UK Shared Prosperity Fund 

Transport, energy & environment 

 £6.1 billion to back the Transport 

Decarbonisation Plan 

 Confirmed £1billion funding for Net Zero 

Innovation Portfolio 

 £625 million for the Nature for Climate 

Fund 

 £385 million Advanced Nuclear Fund 

Businesses 

 25% increase investment into R&D to 

£20million by 2024-2 

 Temporary increase to the headline rates 

of tax relief for theatres, museums, 

orchestras and galleries to March 2024 

 Alcohol duty rates simplified and a new 

Small Producer Relief and Draught Relief 

which will cut duty by 5% 

 New 50% business rates discount for 

businesses in the retail, hospitality, and 

leisure sectors in England 

P
age 57

Item
 8



 From 2023, businesses will be able to 

make property improvements and not pay 

extra business rates for 12 months  

 25% increase investment into R&D to 

£20million by 2024-2 and changes to R&D 

tax relief 

Skills 

 Increase in skills spending by 42% 

 Launching UK-wide numeracy programme 

for adults called Multiply 

Footfall Footfall trends- City Centre (Springboard / 

CityCo) 

Week 42 17th  - 23rd  October 

 

Week 

on week 

% 

Year on 

year % 
Pre 

Covid 

St Ann’s Sq -3.7% 52.5% -35.6% 

Exchange Sq 7.4% 43.7% -24.1% 

King Street 5.2% 25.0% -42.2% 

Market Street -5.3% 50.2% -28.6% 

New 

Cathedral St 
-8.9% 64.7% -26.3% 

 

Footfall trends- District Centres (Springboard) 

Week 42 18th -24th October 

 Week on 

week % 

Year on 

year % 

 

P
age 58

Item
 8



Cheetham 

Hill -9.4% 3.5% 

Chorlton -5.1% 11.1% 

Fallowfield -11.5% 27.9% 

Gorton -13.6% 14.4% 

Harpurhey -11.6% 4.9% 

Levenshulme -10.7% 6.2% 

Northenden -10.0% 21.8% 

Rushholme -27.4% 9.1% 

Victoria 

Avenue -8.3% 13.2% 

Withington -0.5% 14.2% 
 

Higher Education 

Institutions 

 

MMU - Teaching on campus commenced, testing 

and vacs taking place on campus.  

RNCM - 90% students back, 10% still online due to 

Covid. 

UoM - have 2k more students in the first year 

intake than in previous years, but had anticipated 

and planned for this. MECD and the Royce 

Institute opened this Sept.  

UoM reported at BSB that: 

 Student numbers remain high and are at 

46,500 registered with a few still going 

through registration.  

 

Aviation From 4am Monday 4 October 2021, the rules for 

international travel to England will change from the 

red, amber, green traffic light system to a single 

red list of countries and simplified travel measures 

for arrivals from the rest of the world. The rules for 

travel from countries and territories not on the red 

list will depend on your vaccination status. 

The 23/24 Oct weekend, the beginning of half term in many 

places, was Manchester’s busiest weekend since March 2020, 

and we have seen an unprecedented increase in bookings for half 

term. This has been helped by the relaxed testing rules that came 

into effect from 24 October meaning fully vaccinated arrivals into 

the UK can avoid PCR tests and instead have a cheaper rapid 

lateral flow test on day 2.  

P
age 59

Item
 8



If you are fully vaccinated you will have to: 

 book and pay for a day 2 COVID-19 test – 

to be taken after arrival in England 

 complete your passenger locator form – 

any time in the 48 hours before you arrive 

in England 

 take a COVID-19 test on or before day 2 

after you arrive in England 

Under the new rules, you will not need to: 

 take a pre-departure test 

 take a day 8 COVID-19 test 

 quarantine at home or in the place you are 

staying for 10 days after you arrive in 

England 

If you are not fully vaccinated from 4am Monday 

4 October, you must: 

 take a pre-departure COVID-19 test – to 

be taken in the 3 days before you travel to 

England 

 book and pay for day 2 and day 8 COVID-

19 tests – to be taken after arrival in 

England 

 complete your passenger locator form – 

any time in the 48 hours before you arrive 

in England 

After you arrive in England you must: 

 quarantine at home or in the place you are 

staying for 10 days 

 take a COVID-19 test on or before day 2 

and on or after day 8 

 Nonetheless, there is still very significant nervousness towards 

international travel among customers, meaning passenger 

demand remains fragile. This is driven by a mixture of costs of 

travel, risk of rules being changed at short notice, and underlying 

fear of the personal risk of travel during the pandemic. Any 

negative announcements about travel policy / the safety of travel, 

and the continued lack of a roadmap for removing restrictions 

altogether, has the potential to weaken passenger demand 

recovery considerably.  

 Recruitment lead times mean we are having to begin volume 

recruitment now to make sure we have enough staff to manage 

demand we hope to see next summer. We also know our on-

airport partners (e.g. retail) are facing increased staffing costs 

because of wider pressures in the employment market. 

P
age 60

Item
 8



 You may be able to end quarantine early if 

you pay for a private COVID-19 test 

through the Test to Release scheme. 

Culture Culture Recovery Fund  

CRF Round 3 announced 25/6 for the cultural, 

heritage and creative sectors. £218.5 million will be 

available through the Culture Recovery Fund:  

 ACE Emergency Resource Support programme 

(now live) Applicaiton deadline is 14 October & 

deadline to get permission to apply is 30 

September.  

 Culture Recovery Fund Round 3 Resource 

Grants - Historic England & National Lottery 

Heritage Fund are also delivering two further 

CRF funds (now live) a) Emergency Resource 

Support aims to provide emergency funding for 

organisations who are at imminent risk of failure 

(EOI by 30/9). b) the Continuity Support fund for 

those that have already received support from 

the CRF opened for applications 16/8 will close 

29/10. 

 Other CRF Funds now closed. 

 

The outcomes of applications to the fund are 

expected to be published by Friday, 29/10. 

 

ACE Capital Investment Fund 

£20m grants pot for England.  

 Expressions of Interest by 26/10  

Culture re-openings and key events 

 

Corridor of Light 

This major light-based festival took place 21-23/10 along the 

Oxford Road Corridor, under the name "BRIGHT LIGHTS - 

Celebrating new ideas, innovation and creativity" 

Artworks includes a neon work atop Booth Street East Bridge, a 

projected poem travelling around different corridor sites, 'Stories 

under our Feet' projected text spilling out under benches around 

Central Library and an immersive sound and light installation at 

the Holy Name Church. Venues involved included Circle Square, 

Manchester Central, RNCM, HOME, The Whitworth, Bridgewater 

Hall, Manchester Poetry Library and SODA. The programme is 

accompanied by talks & a wider hospitality offer across the area 

including at Hatch. 

 

Manchester Literature Festival took place live 9-17/10 and will run 

digitally 1-14 November.  

  

Contact  

Contact reopened fully to the public on 20/9 following its 

refurbishment and extension. Works completed early in the 

pandemic and first national lockdown and the venue has been 

open for participatory activities and talent development as 

restrictions have allowed. 

P
age 61

Item
 8



 Full applications can be submitted from 10/11 to 

13/12.  

 The grant range is between £100,000 to 

£750,000. 5% match is required for grants up to 

£250,000 and 10% for grants above that. 50% 

of match must be cash. This capital scheme is 

the only one planned for 2021-24. 

  

Officers are working with potential applicants 

to review the scheme and support applications 

 

Staffing 

Cultural partners are consistently reporting 

difficulties in recruiting staff especially in the 

hospitality related roles.  

  

 

Music 

Classical music season opened last weekend: Halle Orchestra 

and BBC Philharmonic at BWH, Psappha at Halle St Michael’s 

and Manchester Collective at Halle St Peter’s. Chet’s/Stoller Hall 

held their Medieval weekend.  

 

HOME 

HOME’s new theatre production War of the World opened last 

week 22 September (first HOME production since lockdown). 

 

Manchester Museum - building closed 

Construction of the new and South Asia Gallery and Exhibition 

Hall has been completed, and the Museum is now closed until late 

2022 to allow for completion of redevelopment works. 

Development  Continued development interest in the city 

for both commercial and residential 

scheme. 

 All schemes are back on site, and 

construction levels increased since the 

beginning of the pandemic, although with 

some overall delays to programmes.  

 Risks around supply chains/access to 

materials, with associated increases in 

costs.  

 Access to finance for hotel and retail 

schemes likely to be more challenging. 

 Economic Recovery & Investment Plan 

identifies key schemes which can drive 

recovery and create new jobs. Ongoing 

  Hana opens in Landmark: Hana by Industrious St 

Peter’s Square has opened its second space in 

Manchester, bringing 32,000 sqft of flexible workspace to 

the market.  

 Great Ancoats Street Residential Proposal: developer 

Select Property Group is consulting on proposals for a 31 

storey, 449-apartment development on the corner of 

Great Ancoats Street and Port Street. It is part of the 

Piccadilly Basin SRF area. The consultation closes on 27 

October. The scheme will be BTR and operated/managed 

by Affinity Living, a wholly owned subsider of Select 

Property Group.  

 Funding agreed for Whitworth St tower: Manchester 

Tower, next to the City Road Inn pub, will be a 327-

apartment scheme over 35 floors. Planning permission for 

the scheme was originally given in 2015. It is for 

P
age 62

Item
 8

https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.pro-manchester.co.uk%2Fnewsrooms%2Fhana-by-industrious-st-peters-square-opens-its-doors-at-landmark%2F%3Futm_source%3Dnewsletter%26utm_medium%3Demail%26utm_campaign%3Dmember%2Bnewsletter&data=04%7C01%7Chilary.sayers%40manchester.gov.uk%7Cbef609c9357446bf18fc08d993a219ab%7Cb0ce7d5e81cd47fb94f7276c626b7b09%7C0%7C0%7C637703146686461729%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=QEOoY7ooVwg2t6WPQsuLVdvx6iikGPhXW2tOk%2FbstDs%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.pro-manchester.co.uk%2Fnewsrooms%2Fhana-by-industrious-st-peters-square-opens-its-doors-at-landmark%2F%3Futm_source%3Dnewsletter%26utm_medium%3Demail%26utm_campaign%3Dmember%2Bnewsletter&data=04%7C01%7Chilary.sayers%40manchester.gov.uk%7Cbef609c9357446bf18fc08d993a219ab%7Cb0ce7d5e81cd47fb94f7276c626b7b09%7C0%7C0%7C637703146686461729%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=QEOoY7ooVwg2t6WPQsuLVdvx6iikGPhXW2tOk%2FbstDs%3D&reserved=0


work to identify funding opportunities for 

schemes.  

 Long term impact on office demand being 

monitored on an ongoing basis, but 

positive indications from office agents and 

the Business Sounding Board, with recent 

reports of increased demand, especially 

for flexible, high quality office space. 

completion in 2025. The scheme is a joint venture 

between Featherfoot Whitworth Street and Altrincham-

based EGCC Group after it was acquired from 

Guernsey-based Brigantes. 

 New flexible salon space opens: Phenix Salon Suites 

have opened their first UK studio in Manchester, offering 

hair and beauty salon space, after taking 6,000 sqft of 

space in 1 Deansgate. 29 studios will be available to rent, 

with half said to be leased already. 

 First at Mayfield: the development is the first in the city 

to use ‘concretene’, a mix of concrete and graphene 

(which reduces the carbon footprint), for a mezzanine 

floor at Escape to Freight Island.    

 Tower of Light switched on: the architecturally designed 

tower, which is part of the Civic Quarter Heat Network, 

has been switched on. The network will go live in 2022.  

 The following schemes were approved at the Planning & 

Highways Committee on 21st October:  

 155-bed hotel and 88-bed aparthotel on currently vacant 

land bound by Cornbrook Road, Chester Road and the 

Metrolink line.  

 Creation of a 31-bed homeless accommodation centre on 

the corner of Lord Street and Stocks Street (Cheetham). 

The centre will be managed by an experienced service 

provider.  

 Hawkins Brown have been selected as the architects for 

the Council’s affordable housing scheme at Postal Street.  

 Office lettings: at Bauhaus on Quay Street, software 

company Connex One has taken 17,800sqft and flexible 

office firm NewFlex has taken 13,730sqft to offer 

workspace under its Bold brand. Charity Freedom From 

Torture has taken 5,000sqft at Chichester House on Moss 

Lane East. Real estate firm Pitalia Real Estate will move 

operations from Bolton to Manchester after acquiring the 

freehold of 24 Oxford Court.  

 Airport warehouses planned: three new units within the 

World Freight Terminal is being planned by Threadneedle 

P
age 63

Item
 8



Curtis who own a five-acre site previously occupied by 

SkyChefs. The proposals would see the current site 

cleared and a total of 85,000sqft across the three units 

built on the site. 

 CIS tower rebranded: the 1960s office tower will be 

rebranded as ‘Society’ once a multimillion-pound 

refurbishment scheme is completed. The tower will be 

split into three areas; Tower, Podium and Street, offering 

office workspace, and leisure and retail units on the street 

level.  

Affordable Housing   Risk to developer and investor confidence.   

 Working with RP’s and other developers to 

understand current impact and forward 

plans.  

 Assessing sources and levels of 

investment, and any obstacles  

 Investigating grant funding, financial and 

other support needed to enable early start 

of key projects  

 Understanding supply chain issues and 

identifying appropriate support measures. 

 Developing guidance/share good practice 

for safe operation of sites 

 Expediting design & planning phases of 

projects. 

 Risk of registered providers slowing down 

or pausing programmes to consolidate 

finances/liquidity 

 Ensure Zero Carbon and Fire safety 

provision are part of the programmes.  

 Potential flooding of the PRS sector as the 

short term let market shrinks.  

 

Current forecasts suggest 497 new affordable homes will be built 

across Manchester in 2021-22 – 153 of which have already 

completed. This includes 278 social rent, 104 affordable rent, 113 

shared ownership and 2 rent to buy homes. 

In addition, there are currently over 900 new affordable homes 

currently under construction across the city and expected to 

complete over the next few years. This includes a number of 

large-scale developments including the Former Belle Vue 

Stadium Site (130 affordable homes) and Gorton Lane (109 

affordable homes) and 2 city centre schemes delivering 

Affordable Private Rent at Swan Street (19 homes) and 

Addington Street (50 homes). 

Feedback from MHPP Growth is suggesting that problems with 

supply chains for products and materials are beginning to impact 

on delivery timescales and costs 

Updates on further key schemes: 

 Planning has been approved for MCC’s development of 

69 social rent homes at Silk Street 

 Enabling works to facilitate the delivery of 130 new MCC 

social rent homes in Collyhurst are ongoing. 

 Alongside their purchase of the Former Boddingtons 

Brewery Site, Latimer - the development arm of Clarion – 

have acquired the final phase at Islington Wharf which 

will provide 54 shared ownership homes as part of a 

mixed tenure development 

P
age 64

Item
 8

https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.placenorthwest.co.uk%2Fnews%2Fmanchesters-cis-tower-to-become-150m-vertical-district%2F%23utm_source%3DPlace%2BNorth%2BWest%26utm_campaign%3DPlace_Daily_Briefing__Tuesday__2021-10-19%26utm_medium%3Demail&data=04%7C01%7Crhiannon.monaghan%40manchester.gov.uk%7Cfbe267e879b94383fb3408d99891fdec%7Cb0ce7d5e81cd47fb94f7276c626b7b09%7C0%7C0%7C637708575058670201%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=9brsbnsYr4udYEYq88k9HkKLlCNAJJb2RJXnQ%2FljAJI%3D&reserved=0


 Great Places secured planning consent for 68 new 

affordable homes at Downley Drive and 39 new 

affordable homes at Ancoats Dispensary at July 

Planning Committee. 

 Grey Mare Lane Estate – One Manchester have started 

construction on the first two phases of the Estate 

Regeneration programme (Blackrock Street & 

Windermere Close). The redevelopment is set to deliver 

c.290 new affordable homes (incl. 124 of reprovision) and 

the retrofit of 150 homes over the next 5 years. A Master 

Plan will be submitted to the November meeting of the 

Executive. 

 

Transport and 

Infrastructure 

City Region Sustainable Transport Settlement  

The Government’s budget has included £1.07bn in 

capital funding for transport infrastructure in 

Greater Manchester. This is the largest amount 

secured by any city-region and is the outcome of 

Greater Manchester’s City Region Sustainable 

Transport Fund (CRSTS) bid, submitted to 

Government in September, equating to around 

90% of our full proposal.  

The funding secured by Greater Manchester is for 

the five-year period 2022-23 to 2026-27 and will 

support the delivery the GM Five Year Transport 

Delivery Plan (2021-2026). This includes key 

investments for buses, trams, cycling and walking 

in the integrated Bee Network, and Greater 

Manchester’s vision for a fully integrated ‘London-

style’ public transport network. MCC officers will 

continue developing priority schemes in 

Manchester to ensure funds are able to be 

accessed and delivered when the funding period 

commences next year. 

 

Summary of transport activity for week ending 17 October 

(GM-wide) 

 There were an estimated 51.6m trips made in Greater 

Manchester last week. This is consistent with the previous 

week and in line with the pre-pandemic average. 

 While weekday trips increased by 1%, weekend trips fell 

by 2% - as a result of fewer large-scale events than there 

were during the previous week. 

 Public transport trips followed a similar pattern: while they 

were 3% below the previous week overall, weekday 

demand was 1% above the previous week and weekend 

demand 11% lower. 

 Overall highway volumes remained consistent with the 

previous week. 

 Cycling volumes were 4% lower than the previous week, 

with a significant decrease in demand on Sunday. 

Workday trips were more consistent, increasing by 4% 

compared to the previous week. 

 Regional centre: During the week ending 17 October, 

the Regional Centre saw 2% fewer trips from the previous 

reporting week. This includes 2.8 million trips from GM 

and 1.0 million from outside of GM. 

P
age 65

Item
 8



UK Net Zero strategy 

On 19 October the government released its Net 

Zero Strategy, setting out more information about 

the UK’s pathway to delivering on its commitment 

to reach net zero emissions by 2050. The Strategy 

set out transport commitments including further 

funding to support the electrification of vehicles, 

such as targeted grants for charging infrastructure. 

EV charging infrastructure is continuing to be rolled 

out in Greater Manchester through the GM EVCI 

Strategy adopted in September 2021, and MCC 

officers are actively feeding in TfGM-led 

programmes to deliver infrastructure where it is 

needed and aligning with our wider economic, 

environmental and social objectives for the city.  

 

 

 

 Trips from within GM (84%) to the Regional Centre 

continue to remain closer to pre-pandemic levels than 

trips from outside of GM (74%). 

 

Transport activity by mode (GM-wide) 

Bus (patronage): -1% on previous week; -8% on pre-Covid 

levels. The busiest day was Thursday with 470,751 passengers. 

Metrolink (patronage): -9.6% on previous week; -34% on pre-

Covid levels. The busiest day was Wednesday with 103,541 

passengers. 

Rail (passenger footfall Piccadilly): -8% on previous week; -

26% on pre-Covid levels. The busiest day was Saturday with 

106,038 passengers. 

Highway (private vehicle trips): no change on previous week; -

1% on pre-Covid levels. The busiest day was Friday with 

5,364,708 trips. 

Cycling (trips): -4% on previous week; -12% on pre-Covid 

(2019). The busiest day was Tuesday with 141,941 trips. 

Walking (pedestrian footfall in Regional Centre): -9% on 

previous week; -5% on pre-Covid levels. The busiest day was 

Sunday with 1,613,190 pedestrian trips. 

 

P
age 66

Item
 8



Skills, Labour 

Market and 

Business Support 

 

Headlines include  

 In September 2021 there were 29,205 

claimants of unemployment benefits in 

Manchester – down from 30,500 in August. 

Unemployment for women is falling much 

faster than it is for men across (trend 

across GM). JCP continue to report that 

they have not seen a significant uptake in 

claims in October. 

 The number of furloughed residents has 

continued to drop as COVID-19 restrictions 

on the economy have been lifted. 12,600 

residents were furloughed on 31st August, 

down from 14,900 in June. The majority of 

residents that remain furloughed are 

employed in accommodation & food 

services or wholesale & retail. Final 

furlough figures available 4th November. 

There is no evidence, yet that formerly 

furloughed residents have moved onto UC, 

where the number of claimants has 

remained broadly stable at just under 

80,000 since the start of the year. 

 New national data shows that vacancies 

are at their highest point since the 

pandemic at 1.1m driven across all sectors 

with highest increases in hospitality. 

 

Newly Unemployed Support 

 New Mosely Street Jobcentre is now open supporting 

clients aged 24+ from Cheetham Hill, Rusholme, Newton 

Heath (these Jobcentres are focusing on 18-24 year 

olds).  

 Employment partnership focus is on re-training and job 

matching as no significant increase in redundancy notices 

has taken place. 

 Continue to work with several live and in development 

recruitment opportunities with business including Getir, 

BNY Mellon, Biffa, PWC, Boohoo. 

 Progress continues to be made on Skills development 

and bounce back of the Cultural Sector with partners co-

ordinating a response led by The Factory. Expected 

relaunch of Factory Consortium in the new year. 

 

Offer for 16-19 year olds  

October DfE submission – (as at August):  

- the level of unknown has increased from 

408 (3.4%) in July to 429 (3.6%) in August.  

- NEET level has remained the same, at 

4.0%  

- the combined NEET and Unknown figures 

have slightly increased compared to the 

Offer for 16-19 year olds 

Workshop held with the Digital Skills Network on the 20th October 

to review the offer for school, 16-19, and 19+ around digital in the 

City. Well attended face to face event showing continued strength 

of the Digital Skills Network in building pathways for young people 

in this sector. 

 

P
age 67

Item
 8



previous month. This has increased from 

892 (7.4%) in July to 909 (7.6%) in August. 

This is lower than last year at 987 (8.7%). 

- There has been an increase in the 

numbers of young people in employment, 

going from 499 (4.1%) in July to 521 

(4.3%) in August.  

  

September guarantee has increased to 79% from 

67% at the same time this year – this means 

recorded on the CCIS system 79% of year 11’s 

has a guaranteed offer of a post 16 destination. 

Youth unemployment 

Maximise the opportunities from and work with 

partners to roll out the Kickstart Scheme.    

  

 Supporting youth employment programmes 

 

  

 

Developing a clear offer to support our graduates 

MCC Kickstart opportunities – working with DWP to deliver an 

open day on 28th Oct at the new JCP office on Moseley Street. 

 

Supported DWP to deliver a ‘Jobs Fest’ event at Wythenshawe 

Forum on 22nd October. 

 

Connected PWC to Reform Radio. PWC are keen to provide work 

placements to young people through the Manchester Futures 

project.  

 

We have connected with University Academy 92. Exploring ways 

we can support their activities. 

Skills and employment support for adults 

Challenges -  

 Roll out of phase 2 of the MCC Digital 

Device Scheme – reaching groups 

Get online week 

MAES, Libraries, the MCC Digital Inclusion Team and the Intranet 

Team collaborated in Get Online Week to deliver a series of 

activities for both MCC staff and residents. There were four staff 

events throughout the week, in which colleagues were supported 

P
age 68

Item
 8



identified as most excluded via the Digital 

Exclusion Index.  

 Ensure that the City's learning provision is 

responding to new challenges as well as 

existing challenges.  

 Launching Let Get Digital work though Get 

Online week 

  

 

with their 365 queries, and there were 5 outreach events for 

residents. Events lasted for two hours and the numbers who 

engaged varied a great deal (2 to 20). The team encountered 

some real resistance to engaging in digital at several of the events 

but were able to have some interesting conversations and 

challenge the perspectives of some residents. 

 

Social Value and Local Benefit 

Challenge: Many residents are not connecting to 

opportunities created in the city – how can we use 

social value internally to maximise creation of 

employment/skills/training opportunities targeted at 

our residents and use our influence to do the same 

with organisations externally?  

  

Ensure that MCC’s approach to SV reflects current 

economic circumstances and Think 

recommendations.  

  

Coordinate employment and skills related social 

value “offers” from across MCC’s largest suppliers 

and capital projects into a pipeline of opportunities 

that can be promoted to residents and 

employment/skills/training organisations. 

Maximise Social Value opportunities arising from Victoria 

North and North Manchester General Hospital developments 

– 

 MCC and partners held a successful workshop with 

Victoria North, North Manchester General Hospital and 

New Park House contractors on 22 October to explore 

social value opportunities particularly in relation to digital 

exclusion and the zero carbon agenda.  

 Further work is taking place this month with ANTZ on 

more detailed scoping of how the ANTZ platform could be 

taken forward. A successful scoping workshop with ANTZ 

and FEC was held 25 October. Plans to progress a free 

pilot are being reviewed by the North Manchester 

Regeneration Economic Benefit Steering Group. 

 

P
age 69

Item
 8



 

Business Support, Sustainability & Growth   

Business Grants  

 

LRSG, ARG are now closed,  

 

 

 

 

 

Growth  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Business Grants   

 The EBSG is utilising the remaining £1.2M of the funding 

provided by Central Government 

 The Emergency Business grant scheme for businesses 

with last remaining ARG grant successfully went live on 

the 18th October to support businesses with ongoing 

fixed property and employee costs. 

 Business survey for non-R/V recipients of grants went live 

on 14th October. Feedback is still being received and 

collated 

  

Small Business Saturday Tour  

The Small Business Saturday team are touring the UK with (24 

stops across the UK) Manchester being one of the chosen 

locations: 

Date: 11 November 10-2pm 

Location: Wellington, Piccadilly   

 

SME and District Centres Support  

 Planning the next SME business support webinar (date 

tbc).  

 The Manchester Business Support group has grown in 

membership to help support SMEs / District Centres / 

High Streets. 

 

P
age 70

Item
 8



Equalities/ 

Disadvantaged 

Ensure that disadvantaged and 
underrepresented groups are supported by activity 
included in Workstreams 1-6. This would include 
Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic groups, young 
people, over 50's, homeless, veterans, survivors of 
DV&A, ESA claimants, and those experiencing 
family poverty.  
  
Covid has worsened the situation for many already 
experiencing inequality – the challenge is to ensure 
support is targeted to reach the communities in 
most need. 

The 2nd Uncertain Futures Employment & Skills webinar will be 

held on 16th November. National Careers Service will deliver the 

session on changing careers and labour market intelligence for 

women over 50 years. 

 

The Growth Company as part of the Our Manchester Disability 

Equality and Inclusion Partnership are delivering a series of 

workshops for employers to encourage and support them to 

attract more disabled people. The next online event will be held 

on 5th November. 

 

The W&S team will be reviewing the use of language in relation to 

race and will incorporate this into the activity around the refresh of 

the W&S strategy currently taking place. 

Funding 

 

No specific known impacts on current external 

funding bids caused by C19 as yet. Known bids 

progressing through funding approval processes 

as expected. 

 

 

 

Funding Announcements  

 

Digital Connectivity Infrastructure Accelerator launched 9th 

September, closing date 18th November.  DCMS will allocate up to 

£4 million of funding to pilots “which support the implementation of 

digital asset management solutions to open up public assets for 

the rollout of wireless communication networks.” GMCA are 

putting a bid together.  

 

UK Shared Prosperity Fund  3 year of funding announced. 

 

2022-3 0.4 billion 

2023-4 0.8 billion (0.7 revenue, 0.1 capital) 

2024-5 1.8 billion (1.5 revenue, 0.3 capital) 
 

As expected, this shows a “ramping up” to European levels of 

funding by year 3.  

Supporting local priorities, the UKSPF will include a new initiative 

(‘Multiply’) to help hundreds of thousands of adults across the UK 

P
age 71

Item
 8



improve their numeracy skills. All areas will receive access to a 

learning platform and funding to improve adult skills. £560 million 

is being allocated to this scheme as part of the SPF. 
 

Funding in Progress 

Community Renewal Fund – LGA has raised the delays in 

announcement with govt:  

A spokesperson for the Department of Levelling Up, Housing and 

Communities said: “Bids are currently being assessed, and the 

outcomes will be announced in due course” which was helpful.  

 

Public Sector Decarbonisation Fund Round 3 has been 

announced – MCC secured c.£19m from round 1 of the fund and 

delivery of that programme is our priority. A bid for £4.5 million to 

the latest round will be submitted this week.  

 

 

Funding Approved  

Energy Savings Trust’s (EST) eCargo Bike Grant Fund, Local 

Authority Scheme 2021/2022. . Confirmation of funding 

received.  

Levelling Up Fund Funding approved for Culture in the City 

Application (HOMEArches & Campfield) in Budget & Spending 

Review on 27th October. 105 projects funded across the UK, £1.7 

billion in total, inc. In Manchester, Tameside, Salford, Bury (x2), 

and Bolton. Culture in the City will receive £19.8 million.  

 

P
age 72

Item
 8



External Lobbying Parliament returns from summer recess on 6 

September 2021 with an announcement on the 

date of the 2021 Spending Review expected soon 

after. There is currently uncertainty surrounding the 

2021 Spending Review period in relation to a 1 or 

3 year settlement for local government. Direct 

lobbying of Government is needed as well as 

working via Greater Manchester and networks 

such as Core Cities UK, Convention of the North 

and the LGA.  

Follow up meetings with government officials are continuing 

following the submission of Manchester’s Spending Review 

proposals. This includes a planned meeting with the Department 

for Levelling Up Communities and Housing, Department for 

Transport and Office for Low Emission Vehicles to discuss the 

hydrogen fleet project. 

 

The UK Cities Climate Investment Commission is holding events 

at COP26 on 3 and 11 November with attendees from HSBC, 

OECD and the UK Infrastructure Bank. 

 

P
age 73

Item
 8



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Manchester City Council 
Report for Information 

 
Report to: Economy Scrutiny Committee – 11 November 2021 
 
Subject: Overview Report 
 
Report of: Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit 
 

 
Summary 
 
This report provides the following information:  

 

 Recommendations Monitor  

 Key Decisions  

 Items for Information 

 Work Programme 
 
Recommendation 
 
The Committee is invited to discuss and note the information provided. 
 

 
Wards Affected: All 
 

 
Contact Officers: 
 
Name:  Mike Williamson 
Position: Governance and Scrutiny Support Manager  
Telephone: 0161 234 3071 
Email:  m.williamson@manchester.gov.uk 
 

 
Background documents (available for public inspection): 
 
The following documents disclose important facts on which the report is based and 
have been relied upon in preparing the report. Copies of the background documents 
are available up to 4 years after the date of the meeting. If you would like a copy 
please contact one of the contact officers above. 
 
None 
 

Page 75

Item 9



 

1. Monitoring Previous Recommendations 
 
This section of the report contains recommendations made by the Committee and responses to them indicating whether the 
recommendation will be implemented, and if it will be, how this will be done.   
 

Date Item Recommendation Response Contact Officer 

14 October 
2021 

ESC/21/49 
Work and Health 

Recommends that the Director of 
Inclusive Economy circulate for 
information the details of 
organisations who had delivered the 
Disability Support Webinars 

A response to this 
recommendation has been 
requested and will be 
reported back once received. 

Angela Harrington 
Director of Inclusive 
Economy 

 
2. Key Decisions 
 
The Council is required to publish details of key decisions that will be taken at least 28 days before the decision is due to be taken. 
Details of key decisions that are due to be taken are published on a monthly basis in the Register of Key Decisions. 
 
A key decision, as defined in the Council's Constitution is an executive decision, which is likely: 
 

 To result in the Council incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are, significant having regard to the 
Council's budget for the service or function to which the decision relates, or  

 To be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards in the area of 
the city. 

 
The Council Constitution defines 'significant' as being expenditure or savings (including the loss of income or capital receipts) in 
excess of £500k, providing that is not more than 10% of the gross operating expenditure for any budget heading in the in the 
Council's Revenue Budget Book, and subject to other defined exceptions. 
 
An extract of the most recent Register of Key Decisions, published on 1 November 2021, containing details of the decisions under 
the Committee’s remit is included below. This is to keep members informed of what decisions are being taken and, where 
appropriate, include in the work programme of the Committee. 
 
 
 

P
age 76

Item
 9



 

Development and Growth 
 

Delivering Manchester's 
Affordable Homes to 2025 
- Establishment of 
Strategic Partnership with 
Homes England 
(2019/09/05A) 
 
To negotiate and formalise 
a Strategic Partnership  with 
Homes England to enable 
the delivery of Manchester 
Affordable Homes to 2025 

Strategic 
Director - 
(Growth and 
Development) 
 

Not before 
4th Oct 2019 
 

In consultation 
with the 
Executive 
Members for 
Housing and 
Regeneration 
and Finance 
and HR 

Report and 
Recommendation 
 

Steve Sheen  
s.sheen@manchester.gov.uk 
 

Delivering Manchester's 
Affordable Homes to 2025 
- Disposal of sites 
(2019/09/05B) 
 
To agree the disposal of 
sites in Council ownership 
for the provision of 
affordable homes 

City Treasurer 
(Deputy Chief 
Executive) 
 

Not before 
4th Oct 2019 
 

In consultation 
with Strategic 
Director 
(Growth and 
Development) 
and Executive 
Members for 
Housing and 
Regeneration 
and Finance 
and HR 

Report and 
Recommendations 
 

Steve Sheen  
s.sheen@manchester.gov.uk 
 

Delivering Manchester's 
Affordable Homes to 2025 
- Establishment of 
Partnership arrangements 
with Registered Providers 
(2019/09/05C) 
 
To establish partnership 

Strategic 
Director - 
(Growth and 
Development) 
 

Not before 
4th Oct 2019 
 

In consultation 
with City 
Treasurer 
(Deputy Chief 
Executive) and 
the Executive 
Members for 
Housing and 

Report and 
recommendation 
 

Steve Sheen  
s.sheen@manchester.gov.uk 
 

P
age 77

Item
 9



 

arrangements with 
Registered Providers 
together with their 
partners/consortium for 
defined areas in the North, 
Central, South and 
Wythenshawe areas of the 
City. 

Regeneration 
and Finance 
and HR 

Delivering Manchester's 
Affordable Homes to 2025 
-Agreement of legal terms 
(2019/09/05D) 
 
To enter into and complete 
all necessary legal 
documents and agreements 
to give effect to delivering 
Manchester’s Affordable 
Homes to 2025 
 
 
 

City Solicitor 
 

Not before 
4th Oct 2019 
 

 
 

Report and 
recommendations 
 

Fiona Ledden, City Solicitor  
fiona.ledden@manchester.gov.
uk 
 

Heron House General 
Letting Consent 
(2019/11/25A) 
 
To agree to the disposal by 
Leasehold of office 
accommodation at Heron 
House. 

Chief Executive 
 

Not before 
24th Dec 
2019 
 

 
 

Briefing Note & 
Heads of Terms 
 

Mike Robertson  
m.robertson@manchester.gov.u
k 
 

Disposal of land at 
Russell Road, Whalley 
Range, Manchester 

Strategic 
Director - 
(Growth and 

Not before 
15th Jun 
2021 

 
 

Report to the Chief 
Executive and 
Strategic Director 

Mike Robertson  
m.robertson@manchester.gov.u
k 

P
age 78

Item
 9



 

(former site of the Spire 
Hospital) (2021/05/04B) 
 
Approval to the terms for 
the granting of a 250 year 
lease to Anchor Hanover 
Group for the development 
of the site for residential 
purposes. 

Development) 
 

 of Growth and 
Development 
 

 

Disposal of site of former 
Chorlton Leisure Centre 
for residential 
development 
(21/05/13A) 
 
Approval to the terms for 
the leasehold disposal of 
the site of the former 
Chorlton Leisure Centre for 
residential development. 

Strategic 
Director - 
(Growth and 
Development) 
 

Not before 
13th Jun 
2021 
 

 
 

Report to the 
Strategic Director 
of Growth and 
Development 
 

Mike Robertson  
m.robertson@manchester.gov.u
k 
 

Disposal of Buglawton 
Hall (2021/05/27A) 
 
To approve the freehold 
disposal of Buglawton Hall, 
Buxton Road, Congleton, 
Cheshire 

Chief Executive 
 

Not before 
25th Jun 
2021 
 

 
 

Briefing Note 
 

Thomas Pyatt, Development 
Surveyor Tel: 0161 234 5469 
thomas.pyatt@manchester.gov.
uk 
 

Streets for All Strategy 
(2021/10/08B) 
 
To adopt the Streets for All 
Strategy. 

Executive 
 

17 Nov 2021 
 

 
 

Greater 
Manchester 
Streets for All 
Strategy 
 

Michael Marriott, Head of Local 
Planning & Infrastructure  
Michael.Marriott@manchester.g
ov.uk 
 

P
age 79

Item
 9

mailto:thomas.pyatt@manchester.gov.uk
mailto:thomas.pyatt@manchester.gov.uk


 

Disposal of Simon House, 
Wavell Road, 
Wythenshawe for use as a 
data centre (2021/10/12A) 
 
Approval to the terms for 
the leasehold disposal of 
Simon House, Wavell Road, 
Wythenshawe for use as a 
data centre 

Strategic 
Director - 
(Growth and 
Development) 
 

Not before 
4th Jan 2022 
 

 
 

Report to the 
Strategic Director 
of Growth and 
Development 
 

Joe Martin, Development 
Surveyor  
joe.martin@manchester.gov.uk 
 

P
age 80

Item
 9



 

3. Economy Scrutiny Committee Work Programme – November 2021 
 
Thursday 11 November 2021, 2.00pm (Report deadline Monday 1 November 2021) 
 

Title Purpose Executive 
Member 

Director/Lead 
Officer 

Comments 

Initial Budget 
proposals 2022/23 
 

To receive a short update on the Council's budget 
position and process and any implications and draft 
proposals for any services in the remit of this 
committee 

Cllr Leese 
(Leader) 
 
Cllr White 
(Executive 
Member for 
Housing and 
Employment) 
 

Pat Bartoli 
Angela 
Harrington 
Paul Hindle 
 

 

Graduate retention 
and student numbers 
in the City 
 

To consider a report that provides an overview of the 
student population studying at higher education 
institutions (HEIs) in Manchester with a focus on The 
University of Manchester and Manchester Metropolitan 
University, alongside an overview of graduate retention 
rates, the impact of COVID-19 on graduate retention 
and the local response to supporting the gradate 
labour market. 

Cllr White 
(Executive 
Member for 
Housing and 
Employment) 
 

Angela 
Harrington 

 

Contribution of Higher 
Education institutes to 
the City’s economy 
 

To consider a report which provides an overview of the 
economic contribution of Manchester's two main 
universities, the University of Manchester and 
Manchester Metroplitan University. The report will 
include data and case studies to illustrate the 
economic contribution across a number of categories 
including direct economic impact, indirect economic 
impact, education and skills, research and 
engagement.  
 

Cllr White 
(Executive 
Member for 
Housing and 
Employment) 
 

Angela 
Harrington 

 

Economy COVID19 Sit To receive the most up to date Economy COVID19 Sit Cllr Leese  David Houliston  

P
age 81

Item
 9



 

Rep Report Rep report that details how the Council and the city is 
progressing with the recovery phase of COVID19 
against the areas within the remit of this Committee. 

(Leader) 
 

Angela 
Harrington 
Pat Bartoli 
Ruth Ashworth 

Overview Report The monthly report includes the recommendations 
monitor, relevant key decisions, the Committee’s work 
programme and any items for information. 

N/A Scrutiny 
Support 

 

 

P
age 82

Item
 9



 

Thursday 9 December 2021, 2.00pm (Report deadline Monday 29 November 2021) 
 

Title Purpose Executive 
Member 

Strategic 
Director/Lead 
Officer 

Comments 

Comprehensive 
Spending Review and 
Funding 
 

Precise details to be confirmed 
 

TBC Angela 
Harrington 
Pat Bartoli 

 

Innovation GM 
 

Precise details to be confirmed 
 

TBC Angela 
Harrington 
Pat Bartoli 
 

 

Selective Licensing - 
Outcome of Public 
Consultation 

To provide detailed feedback on the consultation 
exercise completed in the areas of Gorton and Abbey 
Hey, Harpurhey, Clayton and Openshaw to establish 
whether the declaration of Selective Licensing 
schemes are required. 
 

Cllr White 
(Executive 
Member for 
Housing and 
Employment) 

Fiona Sharkey  

Economy COVID19 Sit 
Rep Report 

To receive the most up to date Economy COVID19 Sit 
Rep report that details how the Council and the city is 
progressing with the recovery phase of COVID19 
against the areas within the remit of this Committee. 

Leader  David Houliston 
Angela 
Harrington 
Pat Bartoli 
Ruth Ashworth 
 

 

Overview Report The monthly report includes the recommendations 
monitor, relevant key decisions, the Committee’s work 
programme and any items for information. 

N/A Scrutiny 
Support 

 

P
age 83

Item
 9



 

Thursday 13 January 2022, 2.00pm (Report deadline Friday 31 December 2021)* To account for New Year’s day Bank 
Holiday 
 

 

 
 

Title Purpose Executive 
Member 

Strategic 
Director/Lead 
Officer 

Comments 

Updates on sub 
strategies of the City 
Centre Transport 
Strategy  
 

To receive an update on the progress on a number of 
the sub strategies contained within the City Centre 
Transport Strategy This will include an update on the 
activities undertaken to promote active travel and 
connectivity across the city. 
 

Cllr Rawlins 
(Executive 
Member for 
Environment) 

Pat Bartoli 
Steve Robinson 

 

Bus Franchising 
update 
 

To receive a report in the Greater Manchester Mayor’s 
proposals to franchise the region’s bus service and the 
impact this will have on the city’s economy. 
 

Leader 
 

Pat Bartoli 
 

 

Economy COVID19 Sit 
Rep Report 

To receive the most up to date Economy COVID19 Sit 
Rep report that details how the Council and the city is 
progressing with the recovery phase of COVID19 
against the areas within the remit of this Committee. 

Leader  David Houliston 
Angela 
Harrington 
Pat Bartoli 
Ruth Ashworth 
 

 

Overview Report The monthly report includes the recommendations 
monitor, relevant key decisions, the Committee’s work 
programme and any items for information. 

N/A Scrutiny 
Support 

 

P
age 84

Item
 9



 

 
Thursday 10 February 2022, 2.00pm (Report deadline Monday 31 January 2022) 
 

 

 
 

Title Purpose Executive 
Member 

Strategic 
Director/Lead 
Officer 

Comments 

Budget proposals 
2022/23 - update 
 

Consideration of the final budget proposals that will go 
onto February Budget Executive and Scrutiny and 
March Council. 
  

Cllr White 
(Executive 
Member for 
Housing and 
Employment) 
 

Pat Bartoli 
Angela 
Harrington 
Paul Hindle 

 

Economy COVID19 Sit 
Rep Report 

To receive the most up to date Economy COVID19 Sit 
Rep report that details how the Council and the city is 
progressing with the recovery phase of COVID19 
against the areas within the remit of this Committee. 

Leader  David Houliston 
Angela 
Harrington 
Pat Bartoli 
Ruth Ashworth 
 

 

Overview Report The monthly report includes the recommendations 
monitor, relevant key decisions, the Committee’s work 
programme and any items for information. 

N/A Scrutiny 
Support 

 

P
age 85

Item
 9



 

Themes identified at the Committee’s 2021/22 Work Programme setting meeting 
(Items highlighted in grey indicate that these have been included in the work plan of one of the above meetings) 

 

Theme Tentative 
Date of 
meeting 
 

Manchester Airport  
 
To include information on addressing the economic recovery of the Airport whilst tackling the Climate Emergency. 
 

 

 

 
Previous Items identified by the Committee to be scheduled  

 

 
Theme – Strategic Regeneration 
 

Item Purpose  Lead 
Executive 
Member 

Lead Officer Comments 

     

 
Theme – Transport and Connectivity 
 

Item Purpose  Lead 
Executive 
Member 

Lead Officer Comments 

Bus Franchising 
update 
 

To receive an update on the Greater 
Manchester Mayor’s proposals to 
franchise the region’s bus service and 
the impact this will have on the city’s 
economy. 
 

Cllr Leese Pat Bartoli  

P
age 86

Item
 9



 

 
Theme - Skills development for Manchester residents aged 16 and over. 
 

Item Purpose  Lead 
Executive 
Member 

Lead Officer Comments 

Higher Education 
provision and its 
impact on the City’s 
economy 

To be determined. Cllr White 
(Executive 
Member for 
Housing and 
Employment) 

Angela Harrington  

 
Theme – Growing the Manchester Economy 
 

Item Purpose  Lead 
Executive 
Member 

Lead Officer Comments 

Business Survival 
rates and the impact 
on the economy 
 

To receive a report that details the 
survival rate of new start up business 
within the city and the economic impact 
to the city when these businesses fail 
 

Councillor 
Leese 

Mark Hughes (The 
Growth Company) 
Louise Wyman 
Pat Bartoli 
Angela Harrington 
 

 

 
Theme - Miscellaneous 
 

Item Purpose  Lead 
Executive 
Member 

Lead Officer Comments 

Audit of Temporary 
Accommodation Costs 

To receive a report for information that 
details the cost of Temporary 
Accommodation. 

Councillor 
Rahman 

Mohamed Hussein  

Purpose Built Student 
Accommodation - 

Update on the current position on 
Purpose Built Student Accommodation 

Cllr White 
(Executive 

Pat Bartoli  

P
age 87

Item
 9



 

update 
 

and implications for future development.   Member for 
Housing and 
Employment) 
 

 

 

P
age 88

Item
 9


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	6 Contribution of Higher Education institutes to the City's Economy
	7 Graduate retention and student numbers in the City
	8 Economy COVID19 Sit Rep Report
	9 Overview Report

